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Board of Education
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(609) 884-3475 Fax: (609) 884-7067

CITY OF CAPE MAY TOWNSHIP OF LOWER BOROUGH OF WEST CAPE MAY

October 23, 2012

Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education
Lower Cape May Regional School District
Cape May County, NJ

The comprehensive annual financial report of the Lower Cape May Regional School
District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both
the accuracy of the data and completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all
disclosures, rests with the management of the Board of Education. To the best of our
knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report is accurate in all material respects and
is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of
operations of the various funds and account groups of the District. All disclosures necessary
to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the District's financial activities have been
included.

The comprehensive annual financial report has been prepared in accordance with
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 34 and is presented in four sections;
introductory, financial, statistical and single audit. The introductory section includes this
transmittal letter, the District's organizational chart, and a list of principal officials. The
financial section includes the general purpose financial statements and schedules, as well as
the auditor's report thereon. The statistical section includes selected financial and
demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. The District is required
to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act of
1984 and the u.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular Letter 04-04 OMB, "Single
Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid Payments."
Information related to this single audit, including the auditor's report on the internal control
structure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations and findings and
recommendations, are included in the single audit section of this report.
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1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES:

Lower Cape May Regional School District is an independent reporting entity with the criteria
adopted by the GASB as established by NCGA Statement No.3. All funds and account
groups of the District are included in this report. The Lower Cape May Regional Board of
Education and all its schools constitute the District's reporting entity.

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels 7 through
12. These include regular and vocational, as well as special education for handicapped
youngsters. The District completed the 2011112 fiscal year with an enrollment of 1,528
students, which is 81 students below the previous year's enrollment. The following details
the changes in the student enrollment of the District over the last ten years.

Average Daily Enrollment
Fiscal Year

2011/12
2010/11
2009110
2008/09
2007/08
2006/07
2005106
2004/05
2003/04
2002/03

Student
Enrollment
1,528
1,609
1,616
1632
1732
1746
1801
1769
1788
1758

Percent
Change
(5.03)%

(.43)%
(.98)%

(5.70)%
(0.08)%
(3.05)%

1.81%
(1.08)%

1.70%
(2.06)%

2. ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK:

Lower Township

Description of Governmental Structure:

The Township encompasses 30.5 square miles in the southern part of Cape May
County. Its boundaries include the Delaware Bay to the South, the Atlantic Ocean to the East,
the City of Cape May to the Southeast, and the Township of Middle to the North. The area
was purchased from the original settlers, the Kechemeche Indians, in the early 1600's. Its
abundant natural resources made it a center for whaling, fishing and fur trapping.

The Township was formed as a precinct in 1723 and was incorporated as a township
on February 21, 1798. From its incorporation until July 1, 1984, three members formed a
township committee which governed the Township. Since July 1, 1984, the governing body
consists of a mayor and four council members (three elected from wards and one at-large).
Since 1984, a Township Manger supervises all departments and is responsible for the
preparation and administration of the annual budget.

The municipality provides, for the population of the township, various services including but
not limited to, police and volunteer fire departments, rescue squad, and recreation. There is
also a municipal authority for both sewer and\vater.



Population:

The population growth in the Township of Lower for the 1940 to 2010 period is as
follows:

1940 Federal Census
1950 Federal Census
1960 Federal Census
1970 Federal Census
1980 Federal Census
1990 Federal Census
2000 Federal Census
2010 Federal Census

Cape May

Governmental Structure:

1,705
2,737
6,332
10,154
17,037
20,820
22,945
22,866

The City is governed by the small municipalities form of government, providing for
the election of a five member City Council, a legislative body, which serves three year terms
and which selects one of its members a Mayor. Council selects the Clerk, Assessor,
Treasurer, City Attorney, Engineer, Auditor and Municipal Court Judge.

History and Geography:

The City, the nation's oldest seashore resort, is located at the southern tip of New
Jersey, where the Atlantic Ocean meets the Delaware Bay.

Discovered by Henry Hudson in 1609, settled by the Dutch in 1623 and colonized by
the Pilgrims of Plymouth, the City has a rich history that today is a major source of local
prosperity.

Named for Dutch explorer Cornelius Jacobsen Mey, the City is located in the County
of Cape May on the New Jersey peninsula known as Cape May. It is a surprise to many that
the City is actually located below the Mason-Dixon Line and is further south than
Washington, D.C.

Following the "Great Fire of 1878" that destroyed half of the town, residents and
vacationers rebuilt the city in the Victorian architectural style popular in the era. As a result,
the City has the largest concentration of authentic Victorian structures in America. Today,
several hundred beautifully manicured houses and public buildings retain this priceless
heritage.

The entire City has been designed by the National Park Service a "National Historic
Landmark".
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The City has a three-mile beachfront on the Atlantic Ocean and is bounded on the
Northeast by Cape May Harbor and on the Northwest by Cape Island Creek. Together with
neighboring municipality West Cape May, Cape May is separated from the mainland by the
Cape May Canal, dug during World War II for national defense reasons. The Canal connects
the Ocean through Cape May Harbor west to the Delaware Bay.

The City is located at the southern terminus of the Garden State Parkway, 150 miles
south of New York City, 100 miles southeast of Philadelphia, and 35 miles south of Atlantic
City.

The city provides fire protection and emergency services, public library, and various
municipal departments including public works, civic affairs, and a sewer and water utility.

West Cape May

The West Cape May area has been experiencing a degree of development and
expansion. The residential tax base should continue to increase; it does appear that the
numbers of families with school aged children locating in the area will increase the average
daily enrollment.

3. MAJOR INITIATIVES:

The district continues to implement the tenets of the SREB "High Schools That Work"
initiative. This includes the full implementation of an Advisory program, individual
student learning plans, and additional supplemental math and English courses for students
in academic jeopardy in both schools. At the High School we are also expanding dual
college credit, career and technical education courses, and the expansion of community
based career development experiences.

Educational and support technology access and systems continue to evolve. The
district now requires 20mb bandwidth for managing a variety of web based applications
and programs used throughout the 7-12 curriculums. A five year virtualization project has
begun that will ensure the continued expansion of educational internet resources and tools
while stemming recurring costs of devices. The addition of lOS devices such as ipads
coupled with building out infrastructure to allow students to use their own devices
(BYOD) also has costs but significant real world learning applications.

Staff development is more critical than ever as we transition to the new common core
standards, a new teacher/Principal evaluation system, new state testing via PARCC, an
increasingly diverse student population, and all the associated and rapidly changing
technological demands of being an educator in the 21 st Century.

The District continues to strive to solicit parent and community input on all matters
pertaining to the schools. This initiative will continue into the future with an emphasis on
developing goals, objectives, and priorities for the next five years.
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4. INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS:

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal
control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss,
theft, or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the
preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP). The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met.

The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should
not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits
requires estimates and judgments by management.

As part of the District's single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the
adequacy of the internal control structure, including that portion related to federal and
state financial assistance programs, as well as to determine that the District has complied
with applicable laws and regulations.

5. BUDGETARY CONTROLS:

In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary controls.
The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions
embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the voters of the municipality.
Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund, the special revenue fund,
and the debt service fund. (Project length budgets are approved for the capital
improvements accounted for in the capital projects fund). The final budget amount as
amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase
commitments on a line item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or
are included as reappropriations of fund balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to
be reappropriated are reported as reservations of fund balance at June 30, 2012.

6. ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS:

The District's accounting records reflect generally accepted accounting principles, as
promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting
system of the District is organized on the basis of funds and account groups. These funds
and account groups are explained in "Notes to the Financial Statements", Note 1.

7. CASH MANAGEMENT:

The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state statute as detailed
in "Notes to the Financial Statements", Note 2. The District has adopted a cash
management plan which requires it to deposit public funds in public depositories protected
from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act
(GUDPA). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units from a loss of
funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. The law required
governmental units to deposit public futds only in public depositories located in New
Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the Act.



8. RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Board of Education carried various forms of insurance, including, but not limited
to, general liability, automobile liability, and comprehensive/collision, hazard and then
insurance on property and contents, and fidelity bonds.

9. OTHER INFORMATION:

Independent Audit: State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified
public accountants or registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Inverso &
Stewart was selected by the Board of Education's audit committee. In addition to meeting
the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the
requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1984 and the related OMB Circular A-128 and
state Treasury Circular Letter 04-04 OMB. The auditor's report on the general purpose
financial statements and combining and individual fund statements and schedules is
included in the financial section of this report. The auditor's reports related specifically to
the single audit are included in the single audit section of this report.

10. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the Lower Cape May
Regional School District Board of Education for their concern in providing fiscal
accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the School District and thereby contributing
their full support to the development and maintenance of our financial operation.

The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient
and dedicated services of our financial and accounting staff.

Respectfully submitted,

Busine
Board Secretary
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INVERSO & STEWART, LLC

Certified Public Accountants
Registered Municipal Accountants

12000 Uncoln Drive West. Suite 402
Marlton. New Jersey 080S3
(856) 983-2244
Fax (8S6) 983-6674
E-Mail: Iscpas@soncentrl£.net

-Member or-
Amerl£an Institute orCpAs
New Jeney Sodety or CPAs

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Lower Cape May Regional School District
County of Cape May
Cape May, New Jersey

We have audited the accompanying fmancial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Lower Cape May Regional School District School
District, in the County of Cape May, State of New Jersey (School District), as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2012, which collectively comprise the School District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the School District's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions
on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards. issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States; and in compliance with audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance, Department of
Education, State of New Jersey. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the fmancial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over fmancial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School District's internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the fmancial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall fmancial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective fmancial
position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Lower Cape May Regional School District School District, in the County of Cape May, State of New
Jersey, as of June 30,2012, and the respective changes in fmancial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for
the fiscal year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 23, 2012 on our
consideration of the Lower Cape May Regional School District School District, in the County of Cape May, State of New
Jersey's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our
audit.
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The accompanying management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information, as listed in the table of
contents, are not a required part of the basic fmancial statements but are supplementary information required by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures,
which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the fmancial statements that collectively comprise the
Lower Cape May Regional School District School District's basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance are presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-l33, Audits of States, Local Governments. and Non-Profit
Organizations and State of New Jersey Circular 04-04-0MB, Single Audit Policy for Recipients oj Federal Grants. State
Grants and State Aid, and are not a required part of the financial statements. In addition, the introductory section,
combining statements and related major fund supporting statements and schedules, and statistical section listed in the
table of contents are also presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance, combining statements and
related major fund supporting statements and schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
fmancial statements taken as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Respectfully submitted,

INVERSO & STEWART, LLC
Certified Public Accountants

()t {)4--
Robert P. Inverso
Certified Public Accountant
Registered Municipal Accountant

Marlton, New Jersey
October 23,2012
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INVERSO & STEWART, LLC

Certified Publlc Accountants
Registered Municipal Accountants

12000 UntOln Drive West, Suite 402
Marlton, New Jeney 08053
(856)983-2244
Fax(856)983~74
E-Mail: IKpas@eom:entrl£.net

-Member of-
Amerlean Institute of CP As
New Jeney Sodety of CPAs

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Lower Cape May Regional School District
County of Cape May
Cape May, New Jersey

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Lower Cape May Regional School District (School District), in the
County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise
the School District's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated October 23, 2012, We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States; and in compliance with audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance, Department of
Education, State of New Jersey,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the Lower Cape May Regional School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Lower Cape May
Regional School District's internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the School District's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion
on the effectiveness of the School District's internal control over financial reporting,

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on
a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the School District's financial statements will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be
deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.
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CompUance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Lower Cape May Regional School District's financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was
not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and
audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the Lower Cape May Regional School District in a separate
report entitled, Auditors Management Report on Administrative Findings - Financial. Compliance and Performance dated
October 23, 2012.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management of the School District, the Division of
Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey, and federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

RespectfuJly submitted,

INVERSO & STEWART, LLC
Certified Public Accountants

Robert P. Inverso
Certified Public Accountant
Registered Municipal Accountant

Marlton, New Jersey
October 23, 2012
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Required Supplementary Information - Part I

Management's Discussion and Analysis



Lower Cape May Regional School District
Management's Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

As management of the Board of Education of the Lower Cape May Regional School District in Cape May
New Jersey, we offer readers of the School District's financial statements this narrative overview and
analysis of the School District for the fiscal year ended June 30,2012. We encourage readers to consider
the information presented in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of
transmittal, which can be found in the introductory section of this report.

Financial Highlights

• The assets of the School District exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal
year by $13,020,440 (net assets).

• Governmental activities have an unrestricted net assets deficit of $1 ,622,792. The accounting
treatments in the governmental funds for compensated absences payable, and the June state
aid payments, and the state statute that prohibits school districts from maintaining more than
2% of its adopted budget as unrestricted fund balance are primarily responsible for this deficit
balance.

• The total net assets of the School District increased by $2,055,736, or a 18.75% increase from
the prior fiscal year-end balance.

• Fund balance of the School District's governmental funds increased by $1,373,863
resulting in an ending fund balance of $2, 116,458. This increase is largely due to the results
of operations in the General Fund.

• Business-type activities have unrestricted net assets of $58,563, which may be used to meet
the School District's ongoing obligations of the food service operations.

• The School District's long-term obligations decreased by $1,236,905 which is the result of the
reduction of certificates of participation, serial bond debt and compensated absences.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the School District's basic financial
statements. Comparison to the prior year's activity is provided in this document. The basic financial
statements are comprised of three components: I) District-wide financial statements, 2) Fund financial
statements, and 3) Notes to the basic financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

District-wide Financial Statements

The district-wide flnancial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the
financial activities in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The district-wide financial statements
include the statement of net assets and the statement of activities.
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The statement of net assets presents information about all of the School District's assets and liabilities. The
difference between the assets and liabilities is reported as net assets. Over time, changes in net assets may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the School District is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the net assets of the School District changed
during the current fiscal year. Changes in net assets are recorded in the statement of activities when the
underlying event occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement even though the resulting cash flows may be recorded in a future period.

Both of the district-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the School District that are supported
from taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) and other functions that are intended
to recover all or most of their costs from user fees and charges (business-type activities). Governmental
activities consolidate governmental funds including the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund, Capital
Projects Fund, and Debt Service Fund. Business-type activities include the Food Service Fund.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements are designed to demonstrate compliance with finance-related requirements. A
fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific objectives. All of the funds of the School District are divided into three categories:
govemmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

Govemmental funds account for essentially the same information reported in the governmental activities of
the district-wide financial statements. However, unlike the district-wide financial statements, the
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term financial resources and fund balances. Such
information may be useful in evaluating the financing requirements in the near tenn.

Since the governmental funds and the governmental activities report information using the same functions,
it is useful to compare the information presented. Because the focus of each report differs, a reconciliation
is provided on the fund financial statements to assist the reader in comparing the near-term requirements
with the long-term needs.

The School District maintains four individual governmental funds. The major funds are the General Fund,
the Special Revenue Fund, the Capital Projects Fund, and the Debt Service Fund. They are presented
separately in the fund financial statements.

The School District adopts an annual appropriated budget for the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund and
the Debt Service Fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for each of these funds to
demonstrate compliance with budgetary requirements.

Proprietary funds are used to present the same functions as the business-type activities presented in the
district-wide financial statements. The School District maintains one type of proprietary fund - the
Enterprise Fund. The fund financial statements of the enterprise fund provides the same infonnation as the
district-wide financial statements, only in more detail.

The School District's enterprise fund is the Food Service Fund and is considered to be a major fund.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the district-wide financial statements because the resources of those
funds are not available to support the School District's programs.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the basic financial statements.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also contains other
supplementary information and schedules required by the New Jersey Audit Program, issued by the New
Jersey Department of Education.

District-wide Financial Analysis

The assets of the School District are classified as current assets and capital assets. Cash, investments,
receivables, inventories and prepaid expenses are current assets. These assets are available to provide
resources for the near-term operations of the School District. The majority of the current assets are the
results of the tax levy and state aid collection process.

Capital assets are used in the operations of the School District. These assets are land, buildings,
improvements, equipment and vehicles. Capital assets are discussed in greater detail in the section titled,
Capital Assets and Debt Administration, elsewhere in this analysis.

Current and long-term liabilities are classified based on anticipated liquidation either in the near-term or in
the future. Current liabilities include accounts payable, accrued salaries and benefits, unearned revenues,
and current debt obligations. The liquidation of current liabilities is anticipated to be either from currently
available resources, current assets or new resources that become available during fiscal year 2012. Long-
term liabilities such as long-term debt obligations and compensated absences payable will be liquidated
from resources that will become available after fiscal year 2012.

The assets of the primary government activities exceeded liabilities by $12,929,041 with an unrestricted
deficit balance of$ I,622,792. The net assets of the primary government do not include internal balances.

A net investment 0[$12,182,168 in land, improvements, buildings, equipment and vehicles which provide
the services to the School District's 1,528 public school students. Net assets of $21,919 have been
restricted to provide resources for future capital expansion and renovation projects, $267,368 is reserved
for debt service, $50,000 is reserved for maintenance, $20,000 is reserved for scholarships, while
$2,010,378 has been restricted for budget appropriation.

As mentioned earlier, deficit unrestricted net assets are primarily due to the accounting treatment for
compensated absences payable and the June state aid payments, and state statutes that prohibit school
districts from maintaining more than 2% of its adopted budget as unrestricted fund balance.
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Lower Cape May Regional School District
Comparative Summary of Net Assets

As of June 30, 2012 and 2011

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities District -Wide

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Assets:
Current assets S 2,207.036 S 1.753.745 S 71.891 S 29.237 S 2,278,927 S 1.782,982

Capital assets 20,062.168 20.655.947 32,836 38.089 20.095.004 20.694.036

Total assets 221269:204 22,409,692 104,727 67.326 22.373.931 22.477.018

Liabilities:
Current Liabilities 1,164.402 2.234,344 13.328 15,304 1,177,730 2,249,648

Noncurrent Liabilities 8.1751761 9,262,666 8,175,761 9,262,666

Total liabilities 9,340,163 11,497,010 13.328 15.304 9,353,491 11,512,314

Net assets S 12.929,041 $ 10,912.682 S 91,399 S 52,022 $ 13,020,440 s 10,964,704

Net assets consist of:
Invested in capital

Assets S 12.182,168 S 11,495.947 S 32,836 S 38.089 $ 12.215.004 $ 11,534,036

Restricted net assets 2.369,665 902,825 2.369,665 902,825

Unrestricted net assets (1.622.792) (1.486.090) 58,563 13.933 ( 1.564,229) (1.472.157)

Net assets S 12,929.041 $ 10.912,682 S 91.399 S 52.022 S 13.020.440 S 10,964.704
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Lower Cape May Regional School District
Comparative Schedule of Changes in Net Assets

As of and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012 and 2011

Governmental Activities Business- Type Activities District-Wide

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Revenues:
Program Revenues

Charges for services S 453,884 S 443,652 S 453,884 S 443,652

Operating grants and

Contributions S 2,989,121 S 3,099,000 399,491 370,726 2,989,121 3,469,726

Capital grants and

Contributions

General Revenues:

Property Taxes 19,199,200 18,860,045 19,199,200 18,860,045

Unrestricted State Aid 9,730,774 8,977,954 9,730,774 8,977.954

Tuition 31,156 57,576 31,156 57,576

Other Revenues 180.202 173,725 87 108 180,289 173,833

Total Revenues 32,130,453 31,168,300 853,462 814,486 32,983,915 31,982,786

Expenses:
Governmental Activities:

Instruction 13,197,310 14,115,045 13,197,310 14,115,045

Tuition 2,023,446 2,253,954 2,023,446 2,253,954

Related Services 2,330,130 2,249,542 2,330,130 2,249,542

Administrative
Services 1,592,794 1,785,926 1,592,794 1.785,926

Central Services 269,820 274,476 269,820 274,476

Operations and
Maintenance 2,736,751 2,494,661 2,736,751 2,494,661

Transportation 1,393,584 1,321,877 1,393,584 1,321,877
Employee benefits 5,999,682 5,410,186 5,999,682 5,410,186
Special Schools 25,022 19,225 25,022 19,225
Charter Schools
Interest on long-term

Debt 328,873 381,877 328,873 381.877
Other 51,682 139,056 51,682 139,056

Business-Type Activities:

Food Service Operations 979,085 1,021,039 979,085 1.021,039

Total Expenses 29,949,094 30,445,825 979,085 1,021,039 30,928,179 31,466,864

Increase in net assets

Before transfers 2,181,359 722,475 (125,623) (206,553) 2,055,736 515,922

Transfers ~165:000~ ~193,OOO~ 165,000 193:000
Changes in net asselS 2,016,359 529,475 39,377 (13,553) 2,055,736 515,922
Net assets, July I, 10:912:682 10!383~07 52,022 65,575 10:964:704 10,448,782

Net assets, June 30, S 12,929,041 s 10,912,682 S 91,399 S 52,022 s 13,020,440 S 10,964,704
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Governmental Activities

Governmental activities increased the net assets of the School District by $2,016,359 during the current
fiscal year. Key elements of the increase in net assets for governmental activities are as follows:

• Total Governmental Funds results of operation increased $1,373,863

• Serial bonds were reduced by principal payments of$ 1,280,000

Business-type Activities

Business-type activities increased the School District's net assets slightly. Key elements of the increase in
net assets for business-type activities are as follows:

• The Food Service Fund had a net gain 0[$39,377

Financial Analysis of the Governmental Funds

As noted earlier, the School District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds - The focus of the School District's governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing
the School District's financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful
measure ofa government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the School District's governmental funds reported a combined
ending fund balance of$2,116,458, an increase of$I,373,863 in comparison with the prior year. Most of
this increase is the results of operations in the General Fund.

The unreserved fund balance for the School District at the end of the fiscal year includes a combination of
a deficit unreserved fund balance for the General Fund of $253,207 and $4 in the Debt Service Fund. The
remainder of the fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has
already been committed I) as restricted cash reserved for future capital outlay expenditures of $21,919,
2) $983,233 reserved as excess surplus, 3) $267,363 reserved for debt service, 4) $50,000 reserved for
maintenance, 5) $226,887 reserved for encumbrances, 5) $800,259 assigned for subsequent years
expenditures, and 6) $20,000 reserved for the penn anent fund.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the School District. As discussed earlier, the balance in the
unreserved fund balance is due, primarily, to the accounting treatment of the June state aid payments as
discussed in Note 18 of the notes to the basic financial statements, and state statutes that prohibit New
Jersey school districts from maintaining more than 2% of its adopted budget as unrestricted fund balance.
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights

There was no difference between the original budget and the final amended budget.

At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance (budgetary basis) of the general fund was
$572,013 while total fund balance (budgetary basis) was $2,654,310. As a measure of the general fund's
liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance (budgetary basis) and total fund
balance (budgetary basis) to total general fund expenditures. Actual (budgetary basis) expenditures of the
General Fund including other financing uses amounted to $28,296,406, unreserved fund balance (budgetary
basis) represents 2.02% of expenditures while total fund balance (budgetary basis) represents 9.38 % of that
same amount.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

The School District's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
June 30, 2012, totaled $20,095,004 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets
includes land, improvements, buildings, equipment and vehicles. The total decrease in the District's
investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was $ 599,032, or a 2.89% decrease. The decrease is
primarily due to depreciation expense.

Capital Asset (net of accumulated depreciation)
June 30, 2012 and 2010

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities District -Wide

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

land S 100 S 100 S 100 S 100
Site Improvements 420,000 450,000 420,000 450,000
Buildings and Building

Improvements 17.865,105 18,351,713 17.865,105 18,351,713

Equipment 1,776,963 1,854,134 S 32,836 s 38,059 1.809,799 1,892,193

Net assets s 201062,168 s 201655,947 s 321836 $ 38,059 s 20.095,004 s 20,694,006

Additional information on the School District's capital assets can be found in the notes to the basic
financial statements (Note 5) of this report.

Long-term debt - During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the School District had $7,390,000
in serial bonds payable, $490,000 in certificates of participation payable and $1,425,761 in compensated
absences.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt that the District may issue. At the end of the
current fiscal year, the legal debt limit was $262,421,266. The available amount as of June 30, 2012 is
$255,031,266.

Additional information on the School District's long-term obligations can be found in the notes to the basic
financial statements (Note 7) of this report.
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Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

The following factors were considered and incorporated into the preparation of the School District's budget
for the 2012-13 fiscal year.

• For 2012-13 fiscal year the School District will be receiving an increase in state aid. The local tax
levy in the General Fund increased by $355,615 or 2.00%. Salaries continue to increase
contractually; however, the District has managed to control costs. The 2012-13 General Fund
Budget is $589,822 greater than the previous year or a 2.14% increase.

For the Future

The Lower Cape May Regional School District is in very good financial condition presently. However, a
major concern is maintaining aging buildings of the district with an increased reliance on local property
taxes as state aid has remained stagnant. Cape May City, Lower Township and West Cape May are
primarily residential communities, with few large ratables; thus the burden is focused on homeowners to
share the tax burden.

In conclusion, the Lower Cape May Regional School District has committed itself to financial excellence
for many years. In addition, the School District's system for financial planning, budgeting and internal
financial controls are well regarded. The School District plans to continue its sound fiscal management to
meet the challenge ofthe future.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the School District's finances for all
those with an interest in the School District. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Lower Cape May
Regional School District Business Administrator, 687 Route 9, Cape May, New Jersey, 08204.
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A-1
LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2012

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $1,808,468 $53,149 $1,861,617
Receivables, net 286,862 14,367 301,229
Inventory 4,375 4,375
Restricted assets:

Capital reserve account 21,919 21,919
Deferred bond issuance costs - net 89,787 89,787
Capital assets, net (Note 5) 20,062,168 32,836 20,095,004

Total assets 22,269,204 104,727 22,373,931

UABIUTlES:
Accounts Payable 8,328 8,328
Scholarships payable 538 538
Deferred revenue 253 253
Accrued Interest 33,611 33,611
Other liabilities 5,000 5,000
Noncurrent liabilities (Note 7):

Due within one year 1,130,000 1,130,000
Due beyond one year 8,175,761 8,175,761

Total liabilities 9,340,163 13,328 9,353.491

NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 12,182,168 32,836 12,215,004
Restricted for:

Debt Service 267,368 267,368
Capital Projects 21,919 21,919
Other purposes 2,080,378 2,080,378

Unrestricted (1,622,792) 58,563 (1,564,229)

Total net assets $1219291041 $91,399 $13,0201440

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012

FunctlonsIPrograms

Program Revenues
Net (Expense) Revenue and

Changes In Net Assets

Expenses

Operating
Charges for Grants and

Services Contributions
Governmental Business-type

Activities Ac1lvltles Total

Govemmental activities:
Instruction:

Regular
Special education
Other instruction

Support Services:
Tuition
Student & Instruction related services
General administrative services
School administrative services
Central services
Plant operations and maintenance
Pupil transportation
Unallocated employee benefits
SpeclaJ schools

Interest on long-tenn debt
Unallocated depreciation and amortization

Total govemmental activities

BUSiness-type activities:
Food service program
Total business-type activities

Total primary govemment

$9,542,650 $270,672 ($9,271,n8) ($9,271,n8)
2,846,667 443,314 (2,403,353) (2.403,353)

802.021 (802,021) (802,021)

2,023.446 (2,023,446) (2,023.446)
2.330.130 117,918 (2,212,212) (2,212,212)

684,458 (684,458) (684,458)
908.336 (908,336) (908,336)
269.820 (269,820) (269,820)

2,736.751 2,642 (2,734,109) (2,734,109)
1,393.584 (1,393,584) (1,393,584)
5.999.882 1,992.595 (4,007,087) (4,007,087)

25,022 (25,022) (25,022)
328.873 155,808 (173.065) (173.065)

51:682 j51,882! j51,882!
29,943.122 2,983,149 (26:959.973! j26.959.973!

979,085 $4531884 399.491 j$125.710! j125,710!
979:085 453,884 399.491 j125,710! j125.7101

$30,922,207 $4531884 $3.362,640 ~$26.959,973~ !$125,710~ 1$27,085,683~

General revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes. levied for general purposes, net 17,780,740 17,780,740
Taxes levied for debt serviee 1.418,460 1.418.460

Federal and state aid not restricted 9,730,n4 9,730.n4
Tuition 31,156 31.156
Transportation fees 76,611 76,611
Miscellaneous income 103,591 87 103.678
Transfer (165,000~ 165.000

Total general revenues, speclaJ items, extraordinary Items and transfers 28,976,332 165.087 29,141.419
Change in Net Assets 2,016,359 39.3n 2.055.736

Net Assets - July 1 1°1912,882 52,022 10.964,704
Net Assets -- June 30 $12,929,041 $91,399 $13,0201440

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an Integral part of this statement.
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B-1
LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

June 30, 2012

Special Capital Debt Total
General Revenue Projects Service Permanent Governmental

ASSETS Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $1,520,562 $267,363 $5 $20,538 $1,808,468
Receivables, net 123,567 $150,632 5,000 279,199
Interfund receivable 163,042 267,363 430,405
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 211919 211919

Total assets $1,829,090 $150,632 $267,363 $272,368 $20,538 $2,539,991

UABIUTIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Scholarships payable 538 538
Interfund payable 150,379 267,363 5,000 422,742
Delerred revenues 253 253

Total liabilities 150,632 267.363 538 4231533

Fund Balances:
Restricted lor:

Excess surplus 983,233 983,233
Excess surplus designated lor

Subsequent Years Expenditures 523,519 523,519
Debt service reserve 267,363 267,363
Capital reserve 21,919 21,919
Maintenance reserve 50,000 50,000
Permanent lund 20,000 20,000

Assigned to:
Year-end encumbrances 226,887 226,887
Subsequent year's expenditures 276,739 1 276,740

Unassigned 1253,2O!l 4 1253,2031
Total lund balances 11829,090 267,368 20,000 2,116,458

Total liabilities and lund balances 51,829,090 $15°1632 $267,363 $267,368 $20,538

Amounts reported lor govemmental activities in the statement 01 net assets
(A-1) are different because:

The cost associated with the issues of various bonds are expensed in the
governmentallunds in the year the bonds are issued, but ere capitalized
in the Statement 01 Net Assets. The bond issuance costs are $320,176
and the accumulated amortization is $230,389. 89,787

Capital assets used in govemmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the funds. The cost of the assets is
$31,204,650 and the accumulated depreciation is 511,142,482 20,062,188

Accrued interest is not due and payable in the current period and
therelore Is not reported as a liability in the lunds. (33,611)

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the
funds. 19,305,761}

Net assets 01 govemmental activities $12,929,041

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an Integrel part 01 this statement.
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B-2
LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

Statement ot Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

for the FIscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

SpeCial Capital Debt Total
General Revenue Projects Service Permanent Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
REVENUES:
Local sources:

Local tax levy $17,780.740 $1.418.460 $19.199.200
Tuition 31.156 31.156
Transportation fees 76.611 76.611
Interest Gamed 95 95
MiScellaneous 103,496 103,496

Total revenues-local sources 17.992.098 1.418.460 19.410.558

State sources 11.317.482 155.808 11.473.290
Federal sources 405.887 834.746 1.240.633
Local sources

Total revenues 29,715,467 834,746 1.574.268 32,124,481

EXPENDITURES:
Current eKpense:

Regular instruction 8.662.256 270.872 8.933.128
SpecIal education Instruction 2.403.353 443.314 2.846.667
Other Instruction 802.021 802.021
Support services and undiStributed costs:

Tultlon 2.023.446 2.023.446
Student & Instruction related services 2.212.212 117.918 2.330.130
General administrative services 603.540 603.540
School administrative services 908.336 908.336
Business services 269.820 269.820
Plant operations and maintenance 2.687.255 2.687.255
Pupil transportation 1.393.584 1.393.584
Unallocated employee benefits 5.999.682 5.999.682
Transfer to charter schools 25.022 25.022

capital outlay 140.879 2.642 143.521
Debt service:

Principal 1.280.000 1.280.000
Intarest and other charges 339,466 339,466

Total expenditures 28,131,406 834.746 1,619,466 30,585,618

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures 1,584,061 145,1981 1,538,863

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out 1'65,0001 1'65,0001

Total other financing sources (uses) 1'65,0001 1'65,0001

Net change in fund balance 1.419.061 (45.198) 1.373.863
Fund balances. July 1 410,029 312,566 $20,000 742,595

Fund balances. June 30 $1.829.090 $267.368 $20.000 $2,116,458

The aocompanying Notes to the Basic Finandel Statements are an Integral part of this statement.
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LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes In Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities

for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Total net change in fund balances - govemmental funds (from B-2)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (A-2)
are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in the governmental funds as expenditures.
However, on the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated
over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount
by which capital outlay exceeded depreciation in the current fiscal year.

Depreciation expense
Capital outlay

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but
the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets and
is reported in the statement of activities.

Repayment of certificates of participation principal is an expenditure in the
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement
of net assets and is reported in the statement of activities.

The disposal of assets is reflected in the statement of activities, however,
the disposal of assets is not reported in the govemmental funds.

In the statement of activities, interest on long-term debt is accrued, regardless of
when due. In the governmental funds, interest is reported when due. The accrued
interest is a reduction in the reconcilation.

Bond issuance costs are reported in the govemmental fund as expenditures in
year the bonds are issued. However, on the statement of activities, the costs are
amortized over the life of the bonds.

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses, e.g., compensated
absences (vacations) are measured by the amounts earned during the
year. In the govemmental funds, however, expenditures for these items
are reported in the amount of financial resources used (paid). When the
earned amount exceeds the paid amount, the difference is a reduction in
the reconciliation (-); when the paid amount exceeds the eamed amount
the difference is an addition to the reconciliation (+).

Change in net assets of governmental activities

($809,181)
215,402

The accompanying Notes to the Basic FinanCial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$1,373,863

(593,779)

1,050,000

230,000

10,593

(11,223)

(43,095)

$2,016,359



LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 3D, 2012

Business-type
Activities

Enterprise Funds

Food
Service

Fund
ASSETS:

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Inventories

$53,149
14,367
4375

Total current assets 71,891

Noncurrent assets:
Equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

184,814
(151,978)

Total noncurrent assets 32,836

Total assets $104,727

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Interfund payable

$8,328
5,000

Total liabilities 13328

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets net of

related debt
Unrestricted

32,836
58,563

Total net assets $91,399

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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B-5

LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012

Business-type
Activities

Enterprise Funds

Food
Service

Fund
Operating revenues:

Charges for services:
Daily sales-reimbursable programs
Daily sales-non-reimbursable programs

$162,552
291.332

Total operating revenue 453.884

Operating expenses:
Salaries
Employee benefits
Supplies and materials
Depreciation
Purchased professional services
Cost of sales
Repairs and maintenance
Miscellaneous

371.775
200,064

18,490
5,253

300
374.837

4.684
3.682

Total operating expenses 979.085

Operating income (loss) (525.201)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
State sources:

State school lunch program
Federal sources:

National school lunch program
National school breakfast program
U.S.D.A. commodities

local sources:
Operating transfer in
Interest revenue

7,840

259,072
84,267
48,312

165.000
87

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 564.578

Change in net assets

Total net assets - July 1

39.377

52.022

Total net assets - June 30 $91.399

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Business-type
Activities

Enterprise Funds

Food
Service

Fund

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Payments to employees for services
Payments to suppliers

Net cash used for operating activities

$451,914
(571,839)
(353,044)
(472,969)

Cash flows from noncapltal financing activities:
Board contribution
State sources
Federal sources

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities

165,000
7,586

331,196
503,782

Cash flows from capital activities:
Purchases of fixed assets

Cash flows from Investing activities:
Interest and dividends

Net cash provided by investing activities
87
87

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 30,900

Balances - July 1 22,249

Balances - June 30 $53,149

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net

cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation
Federal commodities
(Increase) decrease in inventories
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable

Total adjustments

($525,201)

5,253
48,312

2,613
(1,970)
(1,976)
52,232

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities ($472,969)

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Interfund recievable

Total assets

LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Payroll deductions and withholdings
Due to teacher's association
Interfund payable
Due to student groups

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS:
Restricted for:
Unemployment claims
Scholarship payments

Private
Purpose
Trusts

$4,628
5,000

9,628

9,628

$9,628

36

Unemployment
Compensation

Insurance
Trust

$133,381

133,381

17.653

17,653

115,728

$115.728

Flexible
Spending
Account

8-7

Agency
Funds

$264.924

264.924

46.508
177

7.663
210,576

$264,924



8-8
LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012

Private Purpose Unemployment
Trust Funds Compensation Flexible
Scholarship Insurance Spending

Funds Trust Account
ADDITIONS:

Contributions:
Employee withholdings $45,484
Board contributions 25,000 $219,817
Other contributions $2,005

Total Contributions 2,005 70,484 219,817

Investment earnings:
Interest 5 133
Net investment earnings 5 133

Total additions 2,010 70,617 219,817

DEDUCTIONS:
Unemployment claims 54,584
Other expenses 219,817
Scholarships awarded 1,200

Total deductions 1,200 54,584 219,817

Change in net assets 810 16,033

Net assets - July 1 8,818 99,695

Net assets - June 30 $9,628 $115,728
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Lower Cape May Regional School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30t 2011

1. DESCRIPTION OF SCHOOL DISTRICT AND REPORTING ENTITY

The Lower Cape May Regional School District (District) is a Type II school district located in Cape May County, New
Jersey and covers an area of approximately 34 square miles. As a Type II school district, it functions independently
through a Board of Education. The Board is comprised of nine members elected to three-year terms. These terms are
staggered so that three member's terms expire each year. The purpose of the School District is to provide educational
services for all of Lower Cape May Regional's students in grades 7 through 12. The Lower Cape May Regional School
District has an approximate enrollment at June 30, 2012 of 1,528 students.

The primary criteria for including activities within the School District's reporting entity, as set forth in Section 2100 of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting
Standards is the degree of oversight responsibility maintained by the School District. Oversight responsibility includes
financial interdependency, selection of governing authority, designation of management, ability to significantly influence
operations and accountability for fiscal matters. The combined financial statements include all funds of the School district
over which the Board exercises operating control. There were no additional entities required to be included in the reporting
entity under the criteria as described above. Furthermore, the School District is not includable in any other reporting entity
on the basis of such criteria.

Basis of Presentation

The basic financial statements of the School District have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles. The School District also applies Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and
Interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989 to its governmental and business-type activities and to its
proprietary funds, provided they do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The more significant of the
School District's accounting policies are described below.

The School District's basic financial statements consists of government-wide statements, including a statement of net assets
and a statement of activities, and fund fmancial statements, which provide a more detailed level of financial information.

Government-wide Statements - The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information
about the School District as a whole. These statements include the fmancial activities of the primary government,
except for fiduciary funds. The statements distinguish between those activities of the School District that are
governmental and those that are considered business-type activities. The statement of net assets presents the
financial condition of the governmental and business-type activities of the School District at fiscal year-end. The
statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each program or
function of the School District's governmental activities and for the business-type activities of the School District.
Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, program or department and, therefore,
clearly identifiable to a particular function. The policy of the School District is to not allocate indirect expenses to
functions in the statement of activities. Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or
services offered by the program, grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular program and interest earned on grants that is required to be used to support a particular
program. Revenues, which are not classified as program revenues, are presented as general revenues of the School
District, with certain limited exceptions. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the
extent to which each business segment or governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general
revenues of the School District.
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Lower Cape May Regional School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,1012

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fund Financial Statements - During the fiscal year, the School District segregates transactions related to certain
School District functions or activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate
legal compliance. Fund financial statements are designed to present financial information of the School District at
this more detailed level. The focus of governmental and enterprise fund financial statements is on major funds.
Each major fund is presented in a single column. The fiduciary fund is reported by type. The School District uses
funds to maintain its fmancial records during the fiscal year. A fund is defined as a fiscal and accounting entity with
a self-balancing set of accounts. There are three categories of funds: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions typically are financed.
Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances of current financial resources. Expendable assets
are assigned to the various governmental funds according to the purposes for which they mayor must be used. Current
liabilities are assigned to the fund from which they will be paid. The difference between governmental fund assets and
liabilities is reported as fund balance. The following are the School District's major govenunental funds:

General Fund - The general fund is the general operating fund of the School District and is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Included are certain expenditures for
vehicles and movable instructional or non-instructional equipment classified in the capital outlay sub-fund.

As required by the New Jersey State Department of Education, the School District includes budgeted capital outlay
in this fund. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as they pertain to
governmental entities state that general fund resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays for long-lived
improvements as long as the resources in such cases are derived exclusively from unrestricted revenues.

Resources for budgeted capital outlay purposes are nonnally derived from State of New Jersey aid, district taxes and
appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those which result in the acquisition of or additions to capital assets for
land, existing buildings, improvements of grounds, construction of buildings, additions to or remodeling of buildings
and the purchase of built-in equipment.

Inaddition to the capital outlay sub-fund, the School District is accountable for an additional sub-fund, the Education
Jobs Fund ("Ed Jobs"), resulting from federal legislation signed into law on August 10,2011. The Ed Jobs program
was created to provide funding assistance to states in order to save or create education jobs for the period from the
September 30, 2011 through September 30, 2012. Jobs funded under this program include those that provide
educational and related services for early childhood, elementary, and secondary education. Ed Jobs revenues and
expenditures are recorded in the general fund (fund 18) on a reimbursement basis. As such, revenue is not included
in the fiscal year surplus, and no portion of general fund balance at June 30, 2012 is considered to be attributable to
Ed Jobs. Ed Jobs expenditures are included as a component of overall general fund expenditures, and are also
included in general fund expenditures for purposes of the excess surplus calculation.

Special Revenue Fund - The special revenue fund is used to account for and report the proceeds of specific
revenues sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or
capital projects.

Capital Projects Fund - The capital projects fund is used to account and report financial resources that are
restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of
capital facilities and other capital assets, other than those financed by proprietary funds. The financial resources are
derived from New Jersey Economic Development Authority grants, temporary notes or serial bonds which are
specifically authorized by the voters as a separate question on the ballot either during the annual election or at a
special election.

Debt Service Fund - The debt service fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,
committed, or assigned to expenditure for principal and interest.
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Lower Cape May Regional School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, zeu
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Proprietary Funds - Proprietary funds are used to account for the School District's ongoing activities, which are similar to
those in the private sector.

Enterprise Funds - The enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are ftnanced and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the School District is that all costs (expenses,
including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the students on a continuing basis be ftnanced or recovered
primarily through user charges; or, where the School District has decided that periodic determination of revenues
earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management
control, accountability, or other purposes.

The School District's enterprise funds are:

Food Service Fund - This fund accounts for the fmancial transactions related to the food service operations of the
School District.

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a cost of services or "capital maintenance" measurement focus. This means that
all assets and all liabilities, whether current or noncurrent, associated with their activity are included on their balance
sheets. Their reported fund equity (net assets) is segregated into investment in capital assets, net of related debt, and
unrestricted net assets, if applicable. Proprietary fund type operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases
(expenses) in net total assets.

Depreciation of all exhaustive fixed assets used by proprietary funds is charged as an expense against their operations.
Accumulated depreciation is reported on proprietary fund balance sheets. Depreciation has been provided over the
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Equipment
Light Trucks and Vehicles
Heavy Trucks and Vehicles

12 Years
4 Years
6 Years

Internal Service Fund - The internal service fund has been established to account for the fmancing of transportation
services and substitute teacher services provided by the Audubon School District for use by other school districts, as well
as for the Audubon School District itself. Services are provided on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net assets and changes in net assets. The ftduciary fund category is
split into two classiftcations: trust funds and agency funds. Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the School
District in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments, and/or other funds
(i.e. payroll and student activities). They are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement
of results of operations. The School District has four fiduciary funds; an unemployment compensation trust fund, a private
purpose scholarship fund, a student activity fund, and a payroll fund.

Measurement Focus

Government-wide Financial Statements - The government-wide ftnancial statements are prepared using the economic
resources measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of the School District are included
on the statement of net assets.
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Lower Cape May Regional School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fund Financial Statements - All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the
balance sheet The statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances reports on the sources (i.e. revenues
and other financing sources) and uses (i.e. expenditures and other financing uses) of current financial resources. This
approach differs from the manner in which the governmental activities of the government-wide financial statements are
prepared. Governmental fund financial statements, therefore, include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better
identify the relationship between the government-wide statements and the statements for governmental funds.

Like the government-wide statements, all proprietary fund types are accounted for on a flow of economic resources
measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the statement
of net assets. The statement of changes in fund net assets presents increases (i.e. revenues) and decreases (i.e. expenses) in
net total assets. The statement of cash flows provides information about how the School District finances and meets the
cash flow needs of its proprietary activities. Fiduciary funds are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus.

Basis of Accounting
Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and reported on the financial
statements. Government-wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Governmental
funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Proprietary and fiduciary funds also use the accrual basis of
accounting. Differences in the accrual and the modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of revenue, the
recording of deferred revenue, and in the presentation of expenses versus expenditures.

Revenues - Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions - Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each
party gives and receives essentially equal value is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a
modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become
available. "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available" means that the resources
will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay
liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the School District, available means expected to be received within sixty days
after fiscal year end.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the School District receives value without directly giving equal value in return,
include Ad Valorem (property) taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. Ad Valorem (Property) Taxes are susceptible
to accrual, as under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality is required to remit to its school district the entire balance of
taxes in the amount voted upon or certified, prior to the end of the school year. The School District records the entire
approved tax levy as revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year since the revenue is both measurable and available.
The School District is entitled to receive monies under the established payment schedule and the unpaid amount is
considered to be an "accounts receivable". With the exception of restricted formula aids recorded in the special revenue
fund, revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the fiscal year
when the resources are required to be used or the fiscal year when use is first permitted, matching requirements, in which
the School District must provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure requirements, in
which the resources are provided to the School District on a reimbursement basis.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both measurable and available at
fiscal year-end; tuition, grants, fees, and rentals.

ExpenseslExpenditures - On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are incurred.
The fair value of donated commodities used during the fiscal year is reported in the operating statement as an expense.
Unused donated commodities are reported as deferred revenue. The measurement focus of governmental fund
accounting is on decreases in net financial resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally
recognized in the accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable. Allocations of cost,
such as depreciation and amortization, are not recognized in governmental funds.
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Lower Cape May Regional School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

BudgetslBudgetary Control - Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each fiscal year for the general.
special revenue, and debt service funds. The budgets are submitted to the county office for their approval. Budgets are
prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. The legal level of budgetary control is established at line item
accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as established
pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in NJ.A.C. 6:23A-16.2(f)1. Transfers of appropriations may be
made by School Board resolution at any time during the fiscal year in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-13.3.

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during the fiscal
year. For governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America with the exception of the legally mandated
revenue recognition of the one or more June state aid payments for budgetary purposes only and the special revenue fund.
Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental fund types.
Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the budgetary basis. The budgetary basis differs
from GAAP in that the budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues,
whereas the GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP
basis financial reports.

The budget, as detailed on Exhibit Col, Exhibit C-2 and Exhibit 1-3, includes all amendments to the adopted budget, ifany.

Exhibit C-3 presents a reconciliation of the general fund revenues and special revenue fund revenues and expenditures
from the budgetary basis of accounting as presented in the general fund budgetary comparison schedule and the special
revenue fund budgetary comparison schedule to the GAAP basis of accounting as presented in the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds. Note that the School District does not report
encumbrances outstanding at year end as expenditures in the general fund since the general fund budget follows modified
accrual basis with the exception of the revenue recognition policy for the one or more June state aid payments.

Encumbrances - Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of
resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation. Encumbrances are a component of fund balance
at fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather commitments related to unperformed
contracts for goods and services. Open encumbrances in governmental funds, other than the special revenue fund, which
have not been previously restricted. committed, or assigned, should be included within committed or assigned fund
balance, as appropriate.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund, however, for which the School District has received advances of grant
awards, are reflected in the balance sheet as deferred revenues at fiscal year end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An entry will be made at the beginning of
the next fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected in the certified budget by the outstanding encumbrance amount
as of the current fiscal year end.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments - Cash and cash equivalents, for all funds, include petty cash, change funds,
cash in banks and all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase and are
stated at cost plus accrued interest. Such is the definition of cash and cash equivalents used in the statement of cash flows
for the proprietary funds. U.S. Treasury and agency obligations and certificates of deposit with maturities of one year or
less when purchased are stated at cost. All other investments are stated at fair value.

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial institutions they may invest in.
N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37 provides a list of permissible investments that may be purchased by New Jersey school districts.

42



Lower Cape May Regional Scbool District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For tbe Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Casb, Casb Equivalents and Investments (Continued) - NJ.S.A. 17:9-41 et seq. establishes the requirements for the
security of deposits of governmental units. The statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a
public depository unless such funds are secured in accordance with the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act
(GUDPA), a multiple financial institution collateral pool, which was enacted in 1970 to protect governmental units from a
loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. Public depositories include State or federally
chartered banks, savings banks or associations located in or having a branch office in the State of New Jersey, the deposits
of which are federally insured. All public depositories must pledge collateral, having a market value at least equal to five
percent of the average daily balance of collected public funds, to secure the deposits of Governmental Units. If a public
depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public depositories, is available to pay the full
amount of their deposits to the governmental units.

Tuition Receivable - Tuition charges were established by the School District based on estimated costs. The charges are
subject to adjustment when the final costs are determined.

Tuition Payable - Tuition charges for the fiscal years ended June 30,2012 and 2011 were based on rates established by the
receiving school district. These rates are subject to change when the actual costs have been determined.

Inventories - Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market. The costs are determined on a first-in, first-out
basis.

The cost of inventories in governmental fund types is recorded as expenditures when purchased rather than when
consumed, and is not recorded since any amounts are considered immaterial to the basic financial statements.

Inventories recorded in the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund types are recorded as
expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

The proprietary fund type does not maintain any inventories as the School District has contracted with another
governmental entity to purchase prepared lunches.

Prepaid Expenses - Prepaid expenses recorded on the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund
types represent payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2012.

In the governmental fund types, however, payments for prepaid items are fully recognized as an expenditure in the fiscal
year of payment. No asset for the prepayment is created, and no expenditure allocation to future accounting periods is
required (non-allocation method). This is consistent with the basic governmental concept that only expendable financial
resources are reported by a specific fund.

Deferred Expenditures - Deferred expenditures are disbursements that are made in one period, but are more accurately
reflected as an expenditure/expense in the next fiscal period. Unlike prepaid expenses, deferred expenditures are not
regularly recurring cost of operations.

Short-Term Interfund Receivables I Payables - Short-term interfund receivables I payables represent amounts that are
owed, other than charges for goods or services rendered to / from a particular fund in the School District and that are due
within one year. These amounts are eliminated in the governmental and business-type columns of the statement of net
assets, except for the net residual amounts due between governmental and business-type activities, which are presented as
internal balances.
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Lower Cape May Regional School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital Assets - General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the proprietary
funds. These assets generally result from expenditures in the governmental funds. These assets are reported in the
governmental activities column of the government-wide statement of net assets but are not reported in the fund fmancial
statements. Capital assets utilized by the proprietary funds are reported both in the business-type activities column of the
government-wide statement of net assets and the proprietary fund statement of net assets.

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and retirements during the
fiscal year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair market value as of the date received. The School District
maintains a capitalization threshold of $2,000. The School District does not possess any infrastructure. Improvements are
capitalized; the cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend an
asset's life are not. All reported capital assets except land and construction in progress are depreciated. Improvements are
depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Description

Governmental
Activities

Estimated Lives

Business-Type
Activities

Estimated Lives

Land and Improvements
Buildings and Improvements
Fumiture and Equipment
Vehicles

10-20 years
10-50 years
5-20 years
5-10 years

NlA
NlA

12 years
4-6 years

Compensated Absences - Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation,
sick leave, and sabbatical leave. A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to services already rendered, and
that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the School District and its employees, is accrued as
the employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences that relate to future services, or that are contingent on
a specific event that is outside the control of the School District and its employees, are accounted for in the period in which
such services are rendered or in which such events take place.

The entire compensated absence liability is reported on the government-wide financial statements.

For governmental funds, the current portion of unpaid compensated absences is the amount that is normally expected to be
paid with expendable available financial resources. In proprietary funds, the entire amount of compensated absences is
recorded as a fund liability.

Deferred Revenue - Deferred revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have been
satisfied.

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations - All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are
reported on the government-wide financial statements, and all payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations
payable from proprietary funds are reported on the proprietary fund fmancial statements. In general, governmental fund
payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in full from current financial resources
are reported as obligations of the funds. However, claims and judgments, compensated absences, special termination
benefits and contractually required pension contributions that will be paid from governmental funds are reported as a
liability in the fund fmancial statements only to the extent that they are normally expected to be paid with expendable
available fmancial resources. Bonds are recognized as a liability on the fund financial statements when due.
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Lower Cape May Regional School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICmS (CONTINUED)

Net Assets - Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of
related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of any
borrowings used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Net assets are reported as restricted
when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the School District or
through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments.

It is the School District's policy to apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both
restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

Fund Balance - The School District reports fund balance in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on
the extent to which the School District is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in those
funds can be spent. The School District's classifications, and policies for determining such classifications, are as follows:

Nonspendable - The nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they
are either not in spendable form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The "not in
spendable form" criteria includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash, such as inventories and prepaid
amounts. The School District had no nonspendable fund balance at June 30, 2012.

Restricted - This fund balance classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific purposes. Such
restrictions, or constraints, are placed on the use of resources either by being (a) externally imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed - This fund balance classification includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant
to constraints imposed by formal action of the School District's highest level of decision making authority, which for
the School District is the Board of Education. Once committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless
the Board of Education removes, or changes, the specified use by taking the same type of action imposing the
commitment.

Assigned - This fund balance classification includes amounts that are constrained by the School District's intent to be
used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. Intent is expressed by either the Board of
Education or by the Business Administrator, to which the Board of Education has delegated the authority to assign
amounts to be used for specific purposes.

Unassigned - This fund balance classification is the residual classification for the General Fund. It represents fund
balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific
purposes within the general fund. The general fund is the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance
amount In other governmental funds, if expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed the amounts restricted,
committed, or assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned fund balance.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balances are available, it is
the School District's policy to spend restricted fund balances first. Likewise, when an expenditure is incurred for purposes
for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications can be used, it is the policy of the School District
to spend fund balances, if appropriate, in the following order: committed, assigned, then unassigned.

Operating and Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses - Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated
directly from the primary activity of the proprietary funds. For the School District, these revenues are sales for the food
service program and tuition fees for the before and after school program and transportation fees for the internal service
fund. Non-operating revenues principally consist of interest income earned on various interest bearing accounts and
federal and state subsidy reimbursements for the food service program.

Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the goods or services that are the primary activity of the fund.
There are no non-operating expenses.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interfund Activity - Transfers between governmental and business-type activities on the government-wide statements are
reported in the same manner as general revenues. Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the
seller funds and as expenditures/expenses in the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without
a requirement for repayment are reported as interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are reported as other financing
sources/uses in governmental funds and after non-operating revenues/expenses in proprietary funds. Reimbursements from
funds responsible for particular expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not presented on the
financial statements.

Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United State of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Custodial Credit Risk Related to Deposits - Custodial credit risk refers to the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the
School District's deposits may not be recovered. Although the School District does not have a formal policy regarding
custodial credit risk, N.J.S.A. 17.9-41 et seq. requires that governmental units shall deposit public funds in public
depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Unit (GUDPA). Under
the Act, the first $250,000 of governmental deposits in each insured depository is protected by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC). Public funds owned by the School District in excess of FDIC insured amounts are
protected by GUDPA. Banks that qualify as public depositories under New Jersey statutes hold cash deposits, with bank
balances totaling $3,049,561 at June 30, 2012.

3. CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT

A capital reserve account was established by the School District for the accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay
expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its activity is
included in the general fund annual budget

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the School District's approved Long Range
Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the New Jersey Department of Education, a school district may
increase the balance in the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes or by
transfer by board resolution at fiscal year-end (June I to June 30) of any unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item
appropriation amounts, or both. A school district may also appropriate additional amounts when the express approval of
the voters has been obtained either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a special question at one of the four special
elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.lA.C. 6:23A-14.I(g), the balance in the account cannot
at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its approved LRFP.

The activity of the capital reserve for the July I,20II to June 30, 2012 fiscal year is as follows:

Balance - July I, 2011 $11,824

Increased by:
Budget Resolution
Interest earned

$10,000
95

10,095

Balance - June 30,2012 $21,919

The June 30, 2012 capital reserve balance does not exceed the LRFP balance oflocal support costs of uncompleted capital
projects.
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4. RECEIVABLES

Receivables at June 30, 2012 consisted of tuition fees charged other governmental units and governmental grants. All
receivables are considered collectible in full due to the stable condition of the other governmental units, State programs and
the current fiscal year guarantee of federal funds.

Receivables as or year-end for the School District's individual major and fiduciary funds, in the aggregate, are as follows:

Special
General Revenue Proprietary

Fund Fund Funds Total

State Aid s 92,958 $ 254 s 93,212
Federal Aid 25,308 s 150,632 12,143 188,083
Other 5,301 1,970 7,271

Total $ 123,567 s 150,632 s 14,367 s 288,566

5. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, was as follows:

Balance Balance
June 30. 2011 Additions Disl!osals June 30. 2012

Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets, not being depreciated:

Land s 100 s 100
Consttuction in progress

Total capital assets, not being
Depreciated 100 100

Capital Assets, being depreciated:
Site Improvements 600,000 600,000
Building and Building Improvements 26,396,361 26,396,361
Equipment 3,992,787 $ 215z402 4,208,189

Totals at historical cost 30,989,148 215,402 31,204,550
Less Accumulated Depreciation:

Site Improvements (150,000) (30,000) (180,000)
Building and Building Improvements (8,044,648) (486,608) (8,531,256)
Equipment ~2,138,653~ ~292,573~ ~2,431 ,226~
Totals accumulated depreciation ~10,333,301~ ~809,181~ ~11,142,482~

Total Capital Assets, being
depreciated, net 20,655,847 ~593,779~ 20z062,068

Governmental Activities Capital
Assets, Net s 20,655,947 $ ~593,7792 s 20,062,168
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s. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Business- Tme Activities:
Capital Assets, being depreciated:

Equipment s 184,814 s 184,814
Less accumulated depreciation {146,725~ $ {S,2S3} {IS 1,978}

Business-Type Activities Capital
Assets, Net $ 38,059 $ ~5,2S32 $ 32,836

Balance
June 30. 2011 Additions Disposals

Balance
June 30. 2012

Depreciation expense in the amount of$809,181 was charged to governmental functions as follows:

Function Amount

Regular Instruction
Administration
Plant Operations and Maintenance
Unallocated

s 566,427
80,918

121,377
40,459

Total depreciation expense $809,181

6. INVENTORY

Inventory in the Proprietary Funds at June 30,2012 consisted of the following:

Food Service

Food
Supplies

$ 4,375
-0-

$ 4,375

7. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the following changes occurred in long-term obligations:

Principal Principal Amounts Due
Outstanding Outstanding Within

Governmental Activities: July 1.2011 Additions Reductions June 30. 2012 One Year

Compensated Absences $ 1,382,666 $ 43,095 s 1,425,761
Certificates of Part. Payable 720,000 s 230,000 490,000 $ 240,000
General Obligation Bonds 8,440,000 1,050,000 7,390,000 890,000

Total Governmental Activity $ 10,542,666 s 43,095 s 1,280,000 s 9,305,761 $ 1,130,000
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7. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D)

Bonds Payable - Bonds and loans are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the School District through
referendums. All bonds are retired in serial installments within the statutory period of usefulness. Bonds issued by the
School District are as follows:

2001 Refunding Bonds dated October 1,2001 in the amount of $920,000 due in annual installments through
March 1,2015, bearing interest rates ranging from 3.625% - 4.250%.

2009 Refunding Bonds dated October 15,2009 in the amount of $6,470,000 due in annual installments through
June 1, 2022, bearing interest rates ranging from 2.00% - 4.00%.

Debt Service Requirements

Principal and interest due on bonds outstanding is as follows:

Year ending June 30. Principal Interest Total

2013 $ 890,000 $ 263,181 $ 1,153,181
2014 875,000 238,900 1,113,900
2015 930,000 215,025 1,145,025
2016 600,000 187,800 787,800
2017 600,000 163,800 763,800

2018-2022 3,495,000 428,000 3,923,000

$ 7,390,000 $ 1,496,706 $ 8,886,706

Advance Refunding

The Board of Education adopted a resolution on August 23, 2001 for the purpose of issuing Refunding Bonds in order to
advance refund up to all of the callable School Bonds dated March I, 1995. The prior bonds were issued to fmance various
capital improvements to the District's facilities.

On October 1,2001 the Board of Education issued $2,985,000 Refunding Bonds and the proceeds of the Refunding Bonds
were used to pay certain issuance costs and the remainder deposited in an escrow fund which will be used to pay the
principal and interest of the refunded bonds when due.

Under the Refunding Bonds, the Board is required to pay principal in annual installments and interest in semi-annual
installments through July 15,2014. The Refunding Bonds carry interest rates in the range of2.20% to 4.25%.
As a result of this transaction, the prior refunded bonds are considered to be defeased and accordingly, the related liability
has been removed from the general long-term debt account group. This advance refunding was undertaken to reduce the
total payments over the next 17 years by $176,507 and to obtain an economic gain of $137,289 which resulted in a net
present value cost savings of 5.368%.

The Board of Education also adopted a resolution on February II, 2009 for the purpose of issuing Refunding Bonds in
order to advance refund up to all of the callable School Bonds dated October 15, 2009. The prior bonds were issued to
finance various capital improvements to the District's facilities.

On October 15, 2009 the Board of Education issued $7,215,000 Refunding Bonds and the proceeds of the Refunding
Bonds were used to pay certain issuance costs and the remainder deposited in an escrow fund which will be used to pay the
principal and interest of the refunded bonds when due.
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7. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D)

Advance Refunding (Continued)

Under the Refunding Bonds, the Board is required to pay principal in annual installments and interest in semi-annual
installments through June 1,2022. The Refunding Bonds carry interest rates in the range of 2.00% to 4.00%.

As a result of this transaction, the prior refunded bonds are considered to be defeased and accordingly, the related liability
has been removed from the general long-term debt account group. This advance refunding was undertaken to reduce the
total payments over the next 13 years by $457,293 and to obtain a net present value savings of $393,681 which resulted in
a net present value cost savings of 5.6039%.

Certificates of Participation Payable

On June 18, 1999 pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:20-4.2(t) the District entered into a school building lease purchase agreement
with the American-East, Inc. (the Lessor) to finance roofrepairs to the High School and Middle School. The approval was
obtained from the Commissioner of Education of the State of New Jersey and the New Jersey Local Finance Board in the
Department of Community Affairs on May 28, 1998. The buildings are located on land owned by the District that has been
leased to the American East, Inc. pursuant to a ground lease agreement dated June 18, 1999. Certificates of Participation
(the Certificates) in the par amount of$2,760,000 were issued and the proceeds budgeted as follows:

Project Construction Fund
Reserve Account
Cost of Certificates Issuance

$ 2,405,172
267,362

87.466
$ 2.....7__60o..:..0.;..;0~0

Under the lease, the District is required to pay basic rent, due on each July 1st and December 1st. Basic rent is composed
of a principal component and an interest component. The Certificates carry interest rates in the range of 3.875% to
5.000%; and the Certificates mature on June 1,2014. The Bank of New York has been appointed to serve as a trustee in the
agreement.

Certificates of Participation Payable

The following is a schedule of the future minimum rent payments for the certificates of participation as of June 30,2012:

Year ending June 30. Principal Interest

2013
2014

s 240,000
250,000

s 25,113
12,813

s 265,113
262,813

$ 490,000 s 37,926 $ 527,926
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8. OPERATING LEASES

At June 30, 2012, the District had operating lease agreements in effect for copiers.

Total operating lease payments made during the year ended June 30,2012 and June 30, 2011 were $130,296 and $70,672
respectively. Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Year Ended
June 30, 2013
June 30, 2014
June 30, 2015

Amount
s 60,811

60,811
60,811

Total future minimum lease payments $ 182,433

9. PENSION PLANS

Description of Plans - Substantially all of the School District's employees participate in one of the following pension
plans which have been established by State statute, and are administered by the New Jersey Division of Pensions and
Benefits (Division): the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF), the Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) or
the Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP). Each plan has a Board of Trustees that is primarily responsible for
its administration. The Division issues a publicly available financial report that includes fmancial statements and required
supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to the State of New Jersey, Division of Pensions and
Benefits. P.O. Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey, 08625-0295.

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund is a cost-sharing contributory defmed benefit pension plan which was established
on January I, 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:66. The TPAF provides retirement, death and disability, and
medical benefits to qualified members. Vesting and benefit provisions are established by N.J.S.A. 18A:66.

The contribution requirements of plan members are determined by State statute. In accordance with Chapter 92 and
Chapter 103, P.L. 2007, plan members were required to contribute 5.5% of their annual covered salary. Chapter 78 P.L.
2011 changed the employee contribution rate as follows: Effective with the first payroll check to be paid on or after
October 1,2011 plan members rate will increase to 6.5% with an additional increase of .14% beginning in July 2012 and
continuing each year until the rate reaches 7.5% in July 2018. The State Treasurer has the right under the current law to
make temporary reductions in rates based on the existence of surplus pension assets in the retirement system; however,
statute also requires the return to the normal rate when such surplus pension assets no longer exists.

Under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the State of New Jersey on-behalf of the School District and
all other related non-contributing employers. No normal or accrued liability contribution by the School District has been
required over the several preceding fiscal years.

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS)

The Public Employees' Retirement System is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defmed benefit pension plan which was
established on January 1, 1955. The PERS provides retirement, death and disability, and medical benefits to certain
qualified members. Vesting and benefit provisions are established by N.J.S.A. 43: 15A and 43:3B.

The contribution requirements of plan members are determined by State statute. In accordance with Chapter 92 and
Chapter 103, P.L. 2007, plan members were required to contnbute 5.5% of their annual covered salary. Chapter 78 P.L.
2011 changed the employee contribution rate as follows: Effective with the first payroll check to be paid on or after
October I, 20 II plan members rate will increase to 6.5% with an additional increase of .14% beginning in July 2012 and
continuing each year until the rate reaches 7.5% in July 2018. The State Treasurer has the right under the current law to
make temporary reductions in rates based on the existence of surplus pension assets in the retirement system; however,
statute also requires the return to the normal rate when such surplus pension assets no longer exists.
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9. PENSION PLANS(CONTINUED)

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS)(Continued)

The School District is billed annually for its normal contribution plus any accrued liability. The School District's
contributions, equal to the required contribution for each fiscal year, were as follows:

Public Emelo~ees Retirement S~stem
Fiscal Normal Accrued Non-Contr Total Paid by
Year Contribution Liability Groue Ins Liability District

2012 s 136,878 s 273,756 $ 26,162 s 436,796 s 436,796
2011 146,716 233,783 28,899 409,398 409,395
2010 123,198 158,295 39,037 320,530 320,530

Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP)

The Defined Contribution Retirement Program is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined contribution pension plan
which was established on July I, 2007, under the provisions of Chapter 92, P.L. 2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007
(N.J.S.A.43:15C-l et. seq), and expanded under the provisions of Chapter 89, P.L. 2008 and Chapter I, P.L. 2010. The
Defined Contribution Retirement Program Board oversees the DCRP, which is administered for the Divisions of Pensions
and Benefits by Prudential Financial. The DCRP provides eligible members, and their beneficiaries, with a tax-sheltered,
defined contribution retirement benefit, along with life insurance and disability coverage. Vesting and benefit provisions
are established byN.J.S.A. 43:15C-l et. seq.

The contribution requirements of plan members are determined by State statute. In accordance with Chapter 92, P.L. 2007
and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007, plan members are required to contribute 5.5% of their annual covered salary. Chapter 78 P.L.
2011 changed the employee contribution rate as follows: Effective with the first payroll check to be paid on or after
October 1,2011 plan members rate will increase to 6.5% with an additional increase of .14% beginning in July 2012 and
continuing each year until the rate reaches 7.5% in July 2018. The State Treasurer bas the right under the current law to
make temporary reductions in rates based on the existence of surplus pension assets in the retirement system; however,
state statute also requires the return to the normal rate when such surplus pension assets no longer exist. The employee
contributions along with the School District's contribution for each pay period are transmitted to Prudential Financial not
later than the fifth business day after the date on which the employee is paid for that pay period.

The School District's contributions to the DCRP were as follows:
Paid by

Total School
Year Liability District

2012 $ 5,192 s 5,192
2011 4,978 4,978
2010 -0- -0-

Related Party Investments - The Division of Pensions and Benefits does not invest in securities issued by the School
District.
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10. POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The School District contributes to the New Jersey State Health Benefits Program (SHBP), a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit post-employment healthcare plan administered by the State of New Jersey Division of Pension
and Benefits. SHBP was established to provide medical, prescription drug, mental health/substance abuse and Medicare
Part B reimbursement to retirees and their covered dependents. The State Health Benefits Program Act is found in New
Jersey Statutes Annotated, Title 52, Article 17.25 et seq. Rules governing the operation and administration of the program
are found in Title 17, Chapter 9 of the New Jersey Administrative Code. The State of New Jersey Division of Pension
issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for
SHBP. That report may be obtained by writing to the Division of Pension and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, NJ 08625-
0295.

P.L. 1987, c.384 and P.L. 1990, c.6 required Teachers' Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and the Public Employees'
Retirement System (PERS), respectively, to fund post-retirement medical benefits for those State employees who retire
after accumulating 25 years of credited service or on a disability retirement. P.L. 2007, c. 103 amended the law to
eliminate the funding of post-retirement medical benefits through the TPAF and PERS. It created separate funds outside of
the pension plans for the funding and payment of post-retirement medical benefits for retired Stale employees and retired
educational employees. As of June 30, 20 II there were 87,288 retirees eligible for post-retirement medical benefits. The
cost of these benefits is funded through contributions by the State in accordance with P.L. 1994, c.62. Funding of post-
retirement medical premiums changed from a pre-funding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in fiscal year 1994.

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992 c.126, which provides free health benefits to members of
PERS and Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a board of education or county college with 25 years of service.
The State paid $126.3 million toward Chapter 126 benefits for 14,050 eligible retired members in fiscal year 2011.

The State establishes the contribution rate based on the annual required contribution of the employers (ARC), an amount
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents the level of funding
that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities
(or funding excess) of the plan over a period not to exceed thirty years. The State's contribution to the SHBP Fund for
TPAF retirees' post-retirement benefits on behalf of the School District for the year ended June 30, 2012 was $750,760,
which equaled the required contributions. The State's contribution to the SHBP Fund for PERS retirees' post-retirement
benefits on behalf of the School District was not determined or made available by the State of New Jersey.

11. ON-BEHALF PAYMENTS

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the School District has recognized as revenues and expenditures $373,464 of on-
behalf payments made by the State of New Jersey for normal retirement costs related to TPAF and $868,371 for
employer's share of social security contributions for TP AF members, as calculated on their base salaries.

12. RISK MANAGEMENT

Property and Liability Insurance - The District is a member of the Atlantic and Cape May Counties Association of
School Business Officials Joint Insurance Fund (ACCASBOJIF), a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common
risk management and insurance program. The District pays an actuarial determined annual assessment to ACCASBOJIF
for its insurance coverage. Supplemental assessments may be levied to supplement the fund. The District has not been
notified of any supplemental assessments.

In addition, the District carries commercial insurance for all other risks of loss, including employee health, accident
insurance and public official surety bonds. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial
insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found in the "Statistical Section" of this report.
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12. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance - The District has elected to fund its New Jersey Unemployment
Compensation Insurance under the "Business Reimbursement Method". Under this plan, the District is required to
reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its former employees and charged to its account
with the State. The District is billed quarterly for amounts due to the State.

The following is a summary of District contnbutions, employee contributions, reimbursements to the State for benefits paid
and the ending balance of the District's expendable trust fund for the current and prior four years:

District Employee Interest Amount Ending
Fiscal Year Contributions Contributions Earned Reimbursed Balance

2011-2012 $ 25,000 $ 45,484 $ 133 $ 54,584 $ 115,728
2010-2011 44,190 287 77,844 99,695
2009-2010 58,266 778 70,023 133,062
2008-2009 46,509 1,620 38,169 144,041
2007-2008 38,427 3,535 40,110 134,081

13. DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The School District offers its employees a choice of various deferred compensation plans created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b). The plans, available to all permanent School District employees, permit
participants to defer a portion of their current salary to future years. Participation in the plans is optional. The deferred
compensation is not available to the participants until termination, retirement, death, or an unforeseeable emergency
occurs. The plan assets are held in trust for the benefit of the employee and are administered by a third party therefore they
are not reflected on the financial statements of the School District.

14. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The School District accounts for compensated absences (e.g. unused vacation, sick leave) as directed by Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB 16), "Accounting for Compensated Absences". A liability for
compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and not contingent on a specific event that is outside the
control of the employer and employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.

School District employees are granted vacation and sick leave invarying amounts in accordance with the School District's
personnel policies. Unused sick leave may be accumulated carried forward to the subsequent years. Employees who retire
from the School District shall be paid for unused sick leave in accordance with the School District's agreement or
personnel policy.

The liability for vested compensated absences is recorded within those funds as the benefits accrued to the employees. As
of June 30, 2012, the liability for compensated absences in the governmental and proprietary funds was $1,425,761.
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15. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The following interfund balances were recorded on the various balance sheets as of June 30, 2012:

Interfund Interfund
Fund Receivable Payable

General $ 163,042
Special Revenue $ 150,379
Capital 267,363
Debt Service 267,363 5,000
Proprietary 5,000
Fiduciary 5,000 7,663

$ 435,405 $ 435,405

16. CONTINGENCIES

The School District participates in a number of federal and state programs that are fully or partially funded by grants
received from other governmental units. Expenditures financed by grants are subject to audit by the appropriate grantor
government. If expenditures are disallowed due to noncompliance with grant program regulations, the School District may
be required to reimburse the grantor government.

At June 30, 2012, significant amounts of grant expenditures have not been audited by the granting agency, but the School
District believes that disallowed expenditures discovered in subsequent audits, if any, will not have a material effect on any
of the individual funds or the overall fmancial position of the School District. Additionally, deferred revenues are
recognized in those funds that have received grant monies in advance of future, reimbursable expenditures.

17. DEFICIT UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE

The School District has a deficit unassigned fund balance 0($253,207 in the General Fund as of June 30, 2012 as reported
in the fund statements (modified accrual basis). N.J.SA 18A:22-44.2 provides that in the event a state school aid payment
is not made until the following school budget year, school districts must record the delayed one or more June state aid
payments as revenues, for budget purposes only, in the current school budget year. The statute provides legal authority for
school districts to recognize this revenue in the current budget year. For intergovernmental transactions, GASB Statement
No. 33 requires that recognition (revenue, expenditure, asset, liability) should be in symmetry, i.e., if one government
recognizes an asset, the other government recognizes a liability. Since the State is recording the June state aid payments in
the subsequent fiscal year, the School District cannot recognize the June state aid payment on the GAAP financial
statements until the year the State records the payable. Due to the timing difference of recording the June state aid
payments, the general and special revenue fund balance deficit does not alone indicate that the School District is facing
financial difficulties.

Pursuant to NJ.S.A. 18A:22-44.2 any negative unassigned general fund balance that is reported as a direct result from a
delay in the June payments of state aid until the following fiscal year, is not considered in violation of New Jersey statute
and regulation nor in need of corrective action. The School District deficit in the GAAP funds statements of $253,207 is
equal to or less than the June state aid payment.
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18. FLEXIBLE BENEFITS PROGRAM

The School District offers its employees a Flexible Benefits Program. The purpose of the program is to provide a tax
incentive for plan participants incurring dependent care expenses and medical, dental or prescription expenses not covered
by other insurance. The School District, who is the plan administrator, has contracted with a third party administrator to
act as its agent to furnish reimbursement services. Because of Internal Revenue Service regulations, if at the end of any
plan year unexpended funds remain, these funds will be forfeited by the participants and returned to the School District.

The following is a summary of School District contributions, reimbursements to the plan participants for benefits paid and
the ending balance of the School District's fiduciary fund for the current and prior two years.

Fiscal Year
Interest

Earnings Contributions
Amount

Reimbursed
Ending
Balance

2011-2012
2010-2011
2009-2010

$ s 219,817 s 219,817 $

19. DEFICIT UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

As of June 30, 2012, a deficit of $1,622,792 existed in the Unrestricted Net Assets of the Governmental Activities. A
reconciliation of Unreserved Fund Balance reported on Exhibit B-1 to Unrestricted Net Assets reported on Exhibited A-I
as follows:

Balances June 30, 2012
Fund Balance (Deficit)
(Exclusive of Capital Projects and Debt Service Funds):

Fund Balance - Unassigned
Add - Unamortized Bond Issuance Costs
Liabilities:

Accrued interest Payable
Compensated Absences

s (253,207)
89,787

(33,611)
(1,425,761 )

Unrestricted Net Assets (Deficit) s _~(.:.l1 ':;;.:62::2~,7.;;,:92:.)

20. FUND BALANCES

RESTRICTED

As stated in Note 1, the restricted fund balance classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific purposes.
Such restrictions, or constraints, are placed on the use of resources by either of the following: (a) externally imposed by
creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation. Specific restrictions of the School District's fund balance are summarized as follows:

General Fund:
Excess Surplus - In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, as amended, the designation of restricted fund balance-
excess surplus is the result of a required calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational
Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA). New Jersey school districts are required to restrict general
fund, fund balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a required minimum amount as
budgeted fund balance in their subsequent years' budget. The excess fund balance at June 30, 2012 is $983,233
presented on the budgetary basis of accounting (Exhibit C-l). Additionally, $523,519 of excess fund balance
generated during the 2010-2011 fiscal year has been restricted and designated for utilization in the 2012-2013
budget
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Lower Township School District
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

20. FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

Capital Reserve - As of June 30, 2012, the balance in the capital reserve account is $21,919. This amount is
restricted for future capital outlay expenditures for capital projects in the School District's approved Long Range
Facilities Plan.

Maintenance Reserve Account - As of June 30, 2012, the balance in the maintenance reserve account is
$50,000. These funds are restricted for the required maintenance of school facilities in accordance with the
Educational Facilities Construction and Financing Act (EFCFA) (NJ.S.A. 18A:7G-9) as amended by P.L. 2004,
c. 73 (SI701).

Debt Service Fund - As of June 30,2012, the restricted fund balance amount was $267,368 of which $267,363 is
reserved for payment of principal and interest of the certificates of participation, $1 has been designated for utilization
in the 2012-2013 budget and $4 is restricted for future debt service expenditures.

Permanent Fund - As of June 30, 2012, the restricted fund balance amount was $20,000 of which is restricted for
future scholarships.

ASSIGNED

As stated in Note I, the assigned fund balance classification includes amounts that are constrained by the School District's
intent to be used for specific pwposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. Specific assignments of the School
District's fund balance are summarized as follows:

General Fund:

Other Purposes - At June 30, 2012 the School District has $226,887 of encumbrances outstanding for purchase
orders and contracts signed by the School District, but not completed, as of the close of the fiscal year.

Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures - The School District has appropriated and included as an
anticipated revenue for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013, $276,739 of general fund balance at June 30, 2012.

UNASSIGNED

As stated in Note I, the unassigned fund balance classification represents fund balance that has not been restricted,
committed, or assigned to specific pwposes. The School District's unassigned fund balance is summarized as follows:

General Fund - As of June 30, 2012, the fund balance of the general fund was a deficit of $253,207, thus resulting in
the fund balance classification of unassigned. The deficit is a result of the delay in the recording of the payment of
state aid until the following fiscal year (See Note 17).
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0-1
LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

Budgetary Compartson Schedule
General Fund

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfers BUdget Actual Actual

REVENUES:
Local sources:

Local lax levy $17.780.740 $17.780.740 517.780.740
Tuition from other other LEAs 22.488 22.488 22.489 $1
Tuition from individuals 8.667 8.667
Tranportation fees from other LEAs 100.000 100.000 76.611 (23.389)
Interest eamed on capital reserve funds 125 125 95 (30)
Unresticted miscellaneous revenue 80.000 80.000 103.496 231496

Total local sources 17.983.353 17.983.353 17,992,098 8,745

State sources:
categorical Special Education Aid 805,867 805,867 805,867
Equalization Aid 118,399 118,399 118,399
categorical Security Aid 355,713 355,713 355,713
Adjustment Aid 6,572.620 6,572,620 6,849,359 276,739
categorical Transportation Aid 1,201,101 1,201,101 1,201,101
Additional non-public transportation aid 10.885 10.885
Extraordinary aid 38.352 38.352
On-behalf TPAF NeGI Premium contributions (non-budgeted) 373.464 373.464
On-behalf TPAF Post Retlrement Medical contributlons (non-budgeted) 750.760 750.760
Reimbursed TPAF social security contributions (non-budgeted) 868.371 8681371

Total state sources 91°53.700 9.0531700 11.3721271 2.318,571

Federal sources:
Education Jobs Fund 338.878 $10,547 347.225 347,225
Medicaid Assisitance Program 571852 57.852 581662 810

Total federal sources 394.530 101547 405,On 405,887 810

TOTAL REVENUES 27A31 1583 1°1547 27A42,130 29,nO.256 2.328,126

EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT EXPENSE:

Regular Programs - Instruction:
Salaries of teachers

Grades 6-8 2.334,919 $15.500 2,350,419 2.350,173 246
Grades 9-12 419531407 {411530} 41911.8n 4.91°1°92 11785

Total Instruction 712881326 {26I030} 712621296 7.260.265 21031

Regular Programs - Home Instruction:
Salaries of teachers 1611200 831808 225.008 2241592 416

Total Home Instruction 1611200 831808 225.008 224.592 416

See Management's Discussion and Analysis section of this report for explanatlon of significant budget variances. Original and final.

(CONTINUED TO NEXT PAGE)
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c.1
LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund

Flecal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
(Contlnued from prior page) Original Budget Final Final 10

Budget Transfers Budget Actual Actual
Regular Programs - Undistributed Instruction:

Other salaries for instruction $704.372 $66.934 $nl.306 $nl.305 $1
Purchased professional - educ services 35.000 (35.000)
Purchased technical services 59.000 (49.600) 9.400 8.735 665
Other purchased services 19.000 19.000 14.790 4.210
General supplies 410,000 (11.042) 398.958 373.560 25,398
Textbooks 80,416 801416 91009 71407

Total Undistributed Instruction 1.307.788 (28.J08} ,12791080 1.1nI399 1011681

Total- Regular Programs -Instruction 8.757.314 9.070 8.7661384 816621256 1041'28

Special Edue Instruction: Multiple Disabilities
Salaries of teachers 133.808 1331808 1331808

Total Multiple Disabilities 1331808 1331808 1331808

Special Educ Instruction: Res. RoomJRes. Center
Salaries of teachers 2.154.439 (78.548) 2.075.891 2.075.890 1
Other salaries for instruction 121.704 31.185 152.889 152.885 4
Purchased professional - edue services 1.000 1.000 1.000
General supplies 47.263 (1.215) 48.048 4O.no 5.278
Textbooks 71250 71250 71250

Total Resource RoomJResource Center 213311656 (481578} 212831078 212691545 131533

Total Special Education -Instruction 2.465.464 (48.578} 21416188S 2.4031353 13.533

Bilingual Education - Instruction
Salaries of teachers 18.000 151840 331840 331835 5

Total Bilingual Education -Instruction 18.000 151840 331840 331835 5

Vocational Programs - Local - Instruction
Salaries of teachers 30.000 301000 301000

Total Vocational Programs - LocaI- Instruction 301000 301000 301000

School-Sponsored Cocurricular Act - Insl.
Salaries 186.249 16.500 202.749 202.152 597
Supplies and materials 27.000 (10Iooo} 171000 12.342 41658

Total School-Sponsored Cocurr. Act. - Inst 213.249 SI500 2191749 2141494 51255

School-Sponsored Athletics - Inst.
Salaries 406.385 (1.500) 404.885 391.273 13.612
Purchased services 30.000 (28.000) 2,000 639 1.361
Supplies and materials 52.000 23.000 75.000 71.780 3.220
Other objects 35.000 35.000 35.000
Transfers to cover deficit (agency funds) 15.000 151000 151000

Total School-Sponsored Athletics - Inst 5381385 (SI500} 5311885 5131692 181'93

See Management's Discussion and Analysis section of this report for explanation of significant budget variances. original and final.

(CONTINUED TO NEXT PAGE)
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Col
LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund

F1ecelYear Ended June 30,2012

Variance
(ContInued from prtor page) Original Budget Final Final to

Budllet Transfers Budllet Actual Actual
Other Instructional Programs· Instruction

Salaries $5.000 $5,000 $5,000
Supplies and materials 51000 51000 51000

Total Other Instructional Programs· Inst. 101000 101000 101000

Undistributed Expenditures· Instruction
TuiUon to other LEAs within the stata- regular 270,000 ($17,160) 252,840 216,927 $35.913
Tuition county voc. school dlst. • regular 653.880 653.880 653,880
Tuition county voc. school dist •• special 131,420 131.420 131.420
Tuition to CSSD & reg. day schools 852.581 852.581 541.683 310.898
Tuition to priv. sch. for the disabled w/i state 615.600 (224.834) 390.766 290.193 100.573
Tuition' state facilities 75.296 17,699 92.995 92.995
Tuition· other 71500 931480 1001980 961348 41632

Total Undistributed Expenditures • Instruction 2.6061277 {1301815~ ~4751462 210231446 452.016

Undistributed Expenditures· Attendance & Social Work
Salaries 37,590 37.590 31.648 5.942
Other purchased services (400-500) 100 100 100
Supplies and materials 11000 11000 11000

Total Undistributed Expenditures· Attendance & Soc. 381690 38.690 311648 71042

Undistributed Expenditures· Health Services
Salaries 206.381 2.500 208.881 208.739 142
Purchased Professional Technical Services 24.255 24.255 21.695 2.560
Other purchased services 250 250 250
Supplies and materials 71000 7.000 51639 11361

Total Undistributed Expenditures· Health Svcs. 2371886 2.500 240,366 236.073 41313

Undist. Expend .• Speech, OT. PT & Related Services
Salaries 48,091 48.091 31.236 16.855
Supplies and materials 11000 11000 11000

Total Undst. Expend.• Speech. OT, PT & Related Services 491091 49.091 311236 171855

Undist. Expend .• Guidance
Salaries of other professional staff 431.468 200 431.668 431.611 57
Salaries of secretarial and clerical assistants 110.674 1,400 112.074 109.778 2.296
Other purchased prof. and tech. services 5.000 5,000 1.600 3.400
Supplies and materials 241000 {11600l 22.400 81326 14074

Total Undst. Expend. - Guidance 5711142 5711142 5511315 191827

Undlst. Expend •• Child Study Team
Salaries of other professional staff 507.190 507,190 498.885 8.305
Salaries of secretarial and clerical assistants 69.819 (35.000) 34,819 23,583 11,236
Purchased professional - educ services 100.000 (25,000) 75,000 67.223 trrt
Supplies and materials 7.500 7.500 3.357 4.143
Other objects 21500 2.500 21500

Totel Undst. Expend.• Chlld Study Team 6871009 {601000) 627,009 593.048 331961

See Management's Discussion and Analysis section of this report for explanation of significant budget variances. original and final.

(CONTINUED TO NEXT PAGE)
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Co1
LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund

FIscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
(Continued from prior page) Original Budget Final Final to

Budget Transfers Budget Actual Actual
UndisL Expend. - Improvement of Instr. Services

Salaries of supervisor of instruction $269,228 $269,228 $265,240 $3,988
Salaries of secretarial and clerical assistants 781369 781369 561636 211733

Total Undst. Expend. - Improvement of Instr. Services 3471597 3471597 3211876 25.721

Undist. Expend. - Educ. Media Serv./Sch. Ubrary
Salaries 238,504 238,504 234,876 3,628
Purchased professional and technical services 12,500 ($11,600) 900 54 846
Supplies and materials 721000 98,650 17°1650 170,087 563

Total Undst. Expend. - Educ. Media Serv./Sch. Ubrary 3231004 87,050 41°1°54 4051°17 51037

UndisL Expend. - Instructional Staff Training Services
Salaries 01 supervisor 01 instruction 30,000 30,000 30,000
Purchased professional - educ services 121000 12,000 111999

Total UndsL Expend. - Instructional Staff Training Svcs. 421000 42,000 411999

Undist. Expend. - Supp. ServoGeneral Admin.
Salaries 261,554 (3,920) 257,634 255,056 2,578
legal services 22,500 3,000 25,500 25,483 17
Audit Fee 33,000 (6,500) 26,500 26,500
ArchitecturalJEnglneering Fees 10,792 (7,500) 3,292 1,100 2.192
Purchased technical services 41,000 (5.000) 36,000 34,706 1,294
Communications J telephone 54,000 16,000 70,000 67,491 2,509
BOE Other Purchased Services
Other purchased services 93,000 (5,580) 87,420 87,414 6
General Supplies 27,500 24,000 51,500 50,491 1,009
BOE In-House TraininglMeeting Supplies 1,500 (1,000) 500 500
Miscellaneous expenditures 40,000 (12,300) 27,700 26,755 945
BOE Membership Dues and Fees 301000 {1,200} 28.800 281544 256

Total Undst. Expend. - Supp. ServoGeneral Admin. 6141846 614,846 6031540 111306

Undist. Expend. - Supp. ServoSchool Admin.
Salaries 01 principals/assist. principals 637,610 (2,550) 635,060 543,087 91,973
Salaries of secretarial and clerical assistants 279,661 11,950 291,611 291,580 31
Purchased professional and technical services 9,000 9,000 9,000
Supplies and materials 48,500 (500) 48,000 47,295 705
Other objects 27.000 {81900} 181100 17374 726

Total Undst. Expend. - Supp. ServoSchool Admin. 1.001In1 1,001 ,n1 908.336 931435

Undist. Expend. - Central Services
Salaries 249,751 6,000 255,751 253,961 1,790
Purchased technical services 22,000 (6,000) 16,000 9,472 6,528
Supplies and materials 10,000 10,000 256 9,744
Miscellaneous expenditures 41500 4,500 31131 1.369

Total Undst. Expend. - Central Services 2861251 286.251 266,820 191431

See Management's Discussion and Analysis section of this report for explanation of signilicant budget variances, original and final.

(CONTINUED TO NexT PAGE)
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LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund

FIscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
(ContInued from prior page) Original Budget Final Final to

Budget Transfers BUSIet Actual ActuaJ
Undist. Expend. - Admin. Info. Tech.

Purchased technical services $1,000 $1,000 $1,000
Supplies and materials 21000 21000 21000

Total Undst. Expend. - Admin. Info. Tech. 31000 3,000 31000

Undist. Expend. - Required Maint. Sch. Facilities
Salaries 199,569 $113,798 313,367 313,367
General supplies 370,000 151,010 521,010 4n,735 $43,275
Other objects 70,000 (70.000)

Total Undst. Expend. - Required Maint. Sch. Facilities 6391569 1941808 83413n 7911102 431275

Undist. Expend. - Custodial Services
Salaries 736,494 (22,500) 713,994 711,801 2,193
Purchased professional & tech. services 4,150 4,150 4,148 2
Other purchased property services 518,191 89,450 607,641 587,151 20,490
Insurance 130,000 31,080 161,080 160,922 158
General supplies 100,000 22,350 122,350 120,943 1,407
Energy (NatUral Gas) 40,000 40,000 26,625 13,375
Energy (Electricity) 225,000 (225,000)
Other objects 51000 {11450~ 31550 2.565 985

Total Undst. Expend. - Custodial Services 1.7141685 {611920~ 1.65g_765 116141155 381610

Undist. Expend. - Care and Upkeep of Grounds
Salaries 105,308 105,308 85,800 19,508
General supplies 101000 10,000 101000

Total Undst. Expend. - care and Upkeep of Grounds 1151308 1151308 951800 191508

Undist. Expend. - Security
Salaries 113,298 113,298 113,298
Purchased professional & tech. services 63.000 101990 73,990 72,900 11090

Total Undst. Expend. - Security 1761298 101990 1871268 1861198 11090

Total Undst. Expend. - Oper. & Maint. of Plant Services 21645,860 143,878 2,789,738 2,687.255 1021483

Undist. Expend. - Student Transportation Services
Salaries on Non-Instructional Aids n5,399 n5,399 n4,498 903
Salaries for pupil trans. (bet home & sch) - regular 586,299 (506,998) 79,301 79,011 290
Salaries for pupil trans. (bet home & sch) - spec ed. 269,301 (203,641) 65,660 65,267 393
Salaries for pupil trans. (other than bet home & sch) 54,000 (54,000)
Other purchased professional and technical services 4,000 (4,000)
Cleaning, repair, and maintenance services 99,780 3,825 103,605 103,597 8
Aide in Ueu - NonPublic Students 2,195 2,195 2,003 192
Aide in Ueu - Charter Schools 8,840 8,840 8,840
Centr. serv. (bet. home & sch.) - vendors 53,000 (49,500) 3,500 2,725 n5
Centr. serv. (other than bet. home & sch.) - vendors 20,000 (20,000)
Centr. serv. (bet. home & sch.) - joint agnnts. 1,500 (1,500)
Centr. serv. (sp ed stds) - vendors 1,500 69,600 71,100 71,079 21
Miscellaneous purchased services - transportation 30,000 (695) 29,305 29,305
Supplies and materials 196,000 61,975 257,975 257,261 714
Other objects 61500 {61500~

Total Undst. Expend. - Student Transportation Services 1.321.880 751000 1,396,880 113931584 3.298

See Management's Discussion and Analysis section of this report for explanation of significant budget variances, original and final.

(CONTUruED TO NEXT PAGE)
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C-1
LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund

Flecal Year Ended June 30,2012

Variance
(Continued from prior page) Original Budget Final Final to

Budllet Transfers Budllet Actual Actual

Unallocated Benefits - Employee Benefits
Social security contributions $446,182 ($48,500) $397,682 $392,256 $5,426
Other retirement contributions - PERS 459,543 (20,900) 438,643 438,632 11
Unemployment compensation 5,500 19,500 25,000 25,000
Health benefits 3,149,502 (181,348) 2,968,154 2,928,977 39,177
Tuition reimbursement 55,000 (10,000) 45,000 37,814 7,186
Other employee benefits 2151000 ~2411ool 1901900 1841408 6,492

Total Unallocated Benefits - Employee Benefits 41330:127 ~265I348l 410651379 410071087 581292

On-behalf TPAF NeGl pension contributions (non-budgeted) 373,484 (373,484)
On-behalf TPAF Post Retirement Medical contributions (non-budgeted) 750,760 (750,760)
Reimbursed TPAF social security contributions (non-bud.) 868,371 ~868,371l

Total Undstributed Expenditures - TPAF 119921595 ~11992,595l

Total Undistributed Expenditures 1511071031 (1471735l 1419591296 161097,875 (l,l381579l

Total General Current Expense $2711391443 ~$1711403l $2619681040 $2719651505 !$997,465l

EXPENDITURES:
CAPITAL OUTLAY:
Equipment:

Grades 6-8
Grades 9-12
Multiple Disabilities
Undist. expenditures - instruction 17,000 42,950 59,950 29,950 30,000
School buses - regular 751000 1741120 2491120 791120 17°1000

Total Equipment 921000 2171°70 3091°70 1091070 200,000

Facilities acquisition and construction services:
Construction Services 4,000 4,000 4,000
Other Objects 271809 271809 271809

Total Facilities acquisition and construction services 271809 41000 311809 311809

Total Capital Outlay 1191809 221.070 340.879 1401879 200,000

SPECIAL SCHOOLS:
ADULT SCHOOL:
Adult Education - Local - Instruction:

Salaries 01 teachers 16,000 16,000 16,000
General supplies 31500 3.500 3,500

Total Adult Education - Local-Instruction 191500 19.500 19.500

Total Special Schools 19.500 19.500 19.500

Transfer of funds to charter schools 27,706 27.706 25,022 2,684

Total Expenditures $2713061458 $49,667 $2713561125 $281131,406 ~$7751281l

See Management's Discussion and Analysis section of this report lor explanation of significant budget variances, original and final.

(CONT1NUED TO NEXT PAGE)
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0.1
LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund

Fiscal Yeer Ended June 30, 2012

Excess (Deliciency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures:

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfer out • Enterprise Fund

Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfers BUdget Actual Actual

$125,125 ($39,120) $86,005 $1,638,850 $1,552,845

(125,000) ~40IOOO} ~165looo} ~165looo}

(1251000) ~40,OOO} ~165loool !165loool

(Continued from prlor page)

Total Other Financing Sources

Excess (Deliciency) 01Revenues and Other
Financing Sources Over (Under) Expenditures
and Other financing Sources (Uses): 125 (79,120) (78,995) 1,473,850 1,552,845

Fund Balance, July 1 1,180A60 111801460 1,180,460

Fund Balance, June 30 $1,180,585 ($79,120) $1,101,465 $2,654,310 $1,552,845

Recapitulation 01Fund Balance:
Restricted Fund Balance:

Excess Surplus
Excsss Surplus· Designated lor Subsequent Years Expenditures
capital Reserve
Maintenance Reserve Account

Assigned Fund Balance
Year-end Encumbrances
Designated lor Subsequent Years Expenditures

Unassigned Fund Balance

$983,233
523,519
21,919
50,000

226,887
276,739
5721°13

2,654,310

Last State Aid Payment not Recognized on a GAAP Basis !825,22O)

Fund Balance per Govememental Funds (GAAP) $1,829,090

See Management's Discussion and Analysis section 01this report lor explanation of significant budget variances, original and final.
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REVENUES:
Federal sources:

Education Jobs Fund

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT EXPENSE:

Regular Programs - Undistributed Instruction:
Other Salary for Instruction

T otallnslruction

Undis1. Expend. - Security
Salaries
Purchased Prof & Technical Services

Total Security

Total General Cunent Expense

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures:

Fund Balance, July 1

Fund Balance, June 30

Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfers BUdget Actual Actual

$336,678 $101547 $347,225 $3471225

3361678 10,547 347,225 347,225

LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

General Fund
Education Jobe Fund

FIscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

159,390 10,547 169,937 169,937

169,937 169,937

113,298 113,298
63,990 63,990

1nl288 1n,288

347,225 3471225

159,390 10,547

113,298
63,990

1n1288

See Management's Discussion and Analysis section 01 this report for explanation of significant budget variances, original and final.

336,678 10,547
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C-2
LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Spacial Revenue Fund

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfers Bud!!!t Actual Actual

REVENUES:
Local sources
State sources
Federal sources $7191285 $1601152 $8791437 $834.746 $441691

Total revenues 7191285 1601152 879.437 834.746 441691

EXPENDITURES:
Instruction:

Salaries of teachers 289.285 (79.483) 209.802 194.455 15.347
Other salaries
Purchased professional - educ. services 8.103 8.103 8.103
Purchased professional· tech. services
Other purchased services
Tuition 430.000 13.314 443.314 443.314
General supplies 75.012 75,012 68,314 6,698
Textbooks
Other objects

Total instruction 7191285 16.946 736.231 714.186 22.045

Support services:
Other salaries 47,440 47,440 31,238 16,202
Salaries of secretarial and clerical asst.
Personal services - employee benefits 49,431 49,431 42,987 6,444
Other purchased professional services
Purchased professional - educ. services
Purchased professional and technical services 33,910 33,910 33,910
Travel 5.400 5,400 5.400
Other purchased services 3,808 3,808 3,808
Supplies and materials 575 575 575
Miscellaneous

Total support services 1401564 140,564 117,918 22,646

Facilities acquisition and construction services:
Equipment
Instructional equipment 2.642 2,642 2,642
Non-Instructional equipment

Total facilities acq. and const. services 2.642 21642 2.642

Transfer to charter schools

Total expenditures 719.285 160.152 8791437 834.746 441691

Total outflows 719.285 160.152 8791437 834.746 44,691

Excess (Deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures and other financing sources (uses)
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C-3
Lower Cape May Regional School District

Notes to Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and GAAP
Revenues and Expenditures

Special
General Revenue

Fund Fund

Sourcesllnflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) ·revenue·

from the budgetary comparison schedules $ 29,nO,256 $ 834,746
Difference - budget to GAAP:

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that
encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and the
related revenue is recognized.

State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements in current
year, previously recognized for budgetary purposes. nO,431

State aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes, not
recognized for GAAP statements until the subsequent year. {825,220}

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances -
govemmental funds. $ 29,715,467 $ 834,746

UseS/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) ·total expenditures· from

the budgetary comparison schedule $ 28,131,406 $ 834,746
Differences - budget to GAAP

Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but not
received is reported in the year the order is placed for budgetary
purposes, but in the year the supplies are received for financial
reporting purposes.

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - govemmental funds $ $28,131,406 $ $834,746
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Special Revenue Fund
Detail Statements



REVENUES:
Stalo soun:es
FocIeJaI soun:es
Local soun:es

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Instruction:

Salaries cl IOOthelB
0Ihet salaries lor inStruclicln
Pwchaso pICIossionIIJ educational SOtVices
PurchaSe prolesslonal and lec:hniaIl seMces
0Ihet pulChas()d sorvices
Travel
G_raJ supplies
Tullion
OtherOl)jeclS
Textbooks

Total inslruclion

support servicos:
OIlIer salaries
SalarIes cl s8Cf8lal1al and c:IerieaI assI.
Personal SOIVic(lS~ benellls
Pwchased proI. and educ!dionaI servicos
Pwchaso pICIesslonaI and lechnical SIllVicos
OIlIer purchaSed pICIessionaI and technical5elV.
Travel
OIlIer putChasecI servicos (~5OO)
Supplies and materials
M!celIaneou5

Total support servicos

Faci!itles acqu!s~1on and const. serv.:
Equipmenl
Inslrucllonal equlpmonl
Non·lnslruclJonal equlpmenl

Totallacililles acquls~1on and const. serv.:

Total ExpendiIures

Excess (DefiCiency) 01 revenues oyor (Wlder)
8JCI)8ndiIures and Olher linancing sources (uses)

E-IA
LOWER CAPE MAYREGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

Special Rovcnuo Fund
Combining Statement of Revenues end ExpendlIures

BudgclaJy Baals
for IIIe FIeceI Ycor Endod JImO 30, 2012

(WIUIcompandlWl10111Is for June 30, 2011)

Brought Brought
FOIWard FOIWard Totals

(Elch. E·1B) (Elch. E·1C) 2012 2011

$345.667 $489.079 S834.74e 51.275.660
5.000

345667 489.079 834 74e 1,280.660

194.455 194.455 212.748

8.103 8.103 3.522

28.999 39.:115 68.314 95.060
443.314 443.314 594.249

231.557 482.629 714188 905.579

31.238 31.238 33.4e5

42.987 42.987 65.008
1.650

33.910 33.910 18.028

5.400 5.400 9.029
3.808 3,808 5.897

575 575 1.132
1.372

114110 3808 117918 135.581

239.500
2.642 2,642

2.642 2642 239.500

345,667 489079 834,74e 1,280,660
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LOWER CAPE MAY REGIOHAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

SpocIal fIItwnuo Fund
CombInIng StotemenI 01 Rownuoa end ExpendIIurea

BudgetaJy &aala
lor tile FIIcel Year Ended .. uno 311, 2012

E.S.E.A. as amended!!l! No Ch!lcll.clt Bclllnd IN.C.LB.I

TIllo I TIllo I ntlolARRA T1tIo U• Part A ntIo II • Part A
CUrmnIY,. PriorY,. PrIOrY,. CUrmntY,. PriorY,. Tolals

AEVENUES:
Stale soun:cs
FcdoI8I soun:cs $2Q6.149 $50.858 55.852 578.895 $3.913 $345.667
Local sources

Tol8lRlIYcnuos 206.149 50.858 5.852 78.895 3913 345.667

EXPENDITURES:
1nsINction:
Salartes 01 toacher.l 119.338 9.371 85.748 194.455
OllIe, salartes lor iMInIcutIon
OIIIe'pu __ (400-SOO)
Purchase p:oIesslonaI educaIionaluelYiees 6.013 2.090 8.103
Purchase p:oIesslonaI and leCIInlcaIue_
Tra.d
General supplieS 23.780 5.219 28.999

~ TuIIIon
Terlbook$

ToI8l tnslNCtion 149131 16680 85,748 231,557

Support seMces:
SalarIes 01 prtncIpaIsI-.
SalarIes 01 _ p:oIessionaI stall
SalarIes 01 seeratrutaI and c:Ierie8l-.
OIlIer saIatIos 5.100 20,288 5.852 31.238
PeISOIIaI selViceHmployee benell!s 20.528 5.399 13.149 3.913 42.997
Purchased prof. and educalionaluelYiees
Purchase professional and lechnlcal selVlCes 25.417 8.493 33.910
0lIl0' purchased profosslonal and technlc:ol lieN.
TI8¥Gt 5.400 5,400
Othe, purchased selVlCes (400-SOO)
Suppllos end malanals 575 575
MisceDaneous

Tol8l support selYiees 57018 34178 5,852 13149 3913 114110

FacIIiIIos aequlsltion and const. SON.:
equipment
InsINclional equlpment
Non-InsIrudlona equlpmcnt

ToI8llaei1i1Jesa:quiSillon and eonsl OOIV.:

ToI8l Expendi1ures 2Q6149 50,858 5852 7!!.895 3913 345,667

e- (Deficiency) 01revenues CNor (under)
OJI)enCfitures and OllIe. IlnancIng sources (uses)



E-1C
lOWERCAPEMAYREG~NALSCHOOlD$~

Special Relletllle Fund
Comblnlng Statement of Rewnuea and Expenditures

Budgetary Buls
for the FIscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

lDEABasic C8lI Peddns
CunentYr. Grant Tolals

REVENUES:
Slate sowces
FedenII sowces $443.314 545,765 5489.079
Local sowces

TOIaI Revenues 443,314 45765 489.079

EXPENDITURES:
Insbuclion:
Salaries of teache1s
0Iher saIiuies lor Ins1rucution
0Iher purthased seJViI:es (400-500)
Purchase professional edueationaI services

~ Purchase professional and technical services
Travel
Gener.!I supPies 39,315 39.315
Tuition 443,314 443.314
TextbocIcs

Tctallnstruction 443314 39,315 482,829

Support services:
0Iher salalIes
Personal S8IVIces-empIoyee benefits
Purchased prof, and educaIlonal s8!Vices
Purchase professiooal and technical services
Other purchased professional and technical servo
Travel
Other purchased services (4QO.5OO) 3,808 3,808
Supplies and malerials
Miscellaneous

Tolal support services ~808 3,808

Facilities acquIslllon and cons!. 58111.:
InsINcllonal Equipment 2,642 2,642
Non,lnstructionai equipment

TctallacilJties acqulsltlon and cons!. serv.: 2642 2,642

Total Expenditures 443314 45,765 489,079

Excess (Deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures and Olher linancing sources (uses)



Proprietary Funds
Detail Statements
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LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
Enterprise Funds

Statement of Net Assets
as of June 30, 2012 and 2011

2012 2011
ASSETS:

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $53,149 $22,249
Accounts receivable:

State 254
Federal 12,143
Other 1,970

Inventories 4,375 6,988

Total current assets 71,891 29,237

Fixed assets:
Equipment 184,814 184,814
Less Accumulated depreciation (151,978) (146,725)

Total fixed assets 32,836 38,089

Total assets $104,727 $67,326

LIABILITIES:

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $8,328 $10,304
Interfund payable 5,000 5,000

Total current liabilities 13,328 15,304

NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets net of

related debt 32,836 38,089
Unrestricted 58,563 13,933

Total net assets $91,399 $52,022
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LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
Enterprise Funds

Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
for the Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

2012 2011
OPERATING REVENUES:

local sources:
Daily sales-reimbursable programs:

School lunch program $162,552 $199,313

Total-daily sales-reimbursable programs 162,552 199,313

Daily sales non-reimbursable programs:
Adult and AlaCarte meals 291,332 244,339

Total operating revenue 453,884 443,652

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries 371,775 402,680
Employee benefits 200,064 208,094
Supplies and materials 18,490 17,718
Depreciation 5,253 5,959
Purchased Professional Services 300 454
Cost of sales 374,837 377,250
Repairs and maintenance 4,684 6,844
Miscellaneous 3,682 2,040

Total operating expenses 979,085 1,021,039

Operating income (loss) (525,201) (577,387)

Non-operating revenues:
State sources:

State school lunch program 7,840 7,990
Federal sources:

National school lunch program 259,072 256,054
National school breakfast program 84,267 63,903

U.S.DA commodities 48,312 42,779
Operating transfer in 165,000 193,000
Interest revenue 87 108

Total non-operating revenues 564,576 563,634

Change in net assets 39,377 (13,553)

Total net assets - July 1 52,022 65,575

Total net assets - June 30 $91,399 $52,022

n
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LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
Enterprise Funds

Statement of Cash Flows
for the Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

2012 2011

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash receipts from customers $451,914 $443,651
Cash payments to employees for services (571,839) (610,773)
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (353,044) (376,016)

Net cash used by operating activities (472,969) (543,138)

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Interfund advance
Board contribution 165,000 193,000
Cash received from state and federal reimbursements 338,782 353,091

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 503,782 546,091

Cash flows from capital financing activities:
Purchases of fixed assets

Net cash used by capital financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments 87 108

Net cash provided by investing activities 87 108

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 30,900 3,061

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1 22,249 19,188

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30 $53,149 $22,249

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) ($525,201) ($577,387)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 5,253 5,959
Federal commodities 48,312 42,779
Change in assets and liabilities:

(Increase)/decrease in inventory 2,613 (4,738)
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable (1,970)
Increase/(decrease) in interfund payable
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable (1,976) (9l51)

Net cash used by operating activities ($472,969) ($543,138)
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Fiduciary Funds
Detail Statements
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LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
Fiduciary Funds

Combining Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2012

(With comparative totals for June 30, 2011)

Private Purpose
Agenc:l Funds Trust Fund Unemployment

Compensation Flexible
Student Scholarship Insurance Spending Totals
Activity Payroll Funds Trust Account 2012 2011

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $210,576 $54,348 $4,628 $133,381 $402,933 $358,810
Interfund receivable 5,000 5,000 5,000

TOTAL ASSETS $210,576 $54,348 $9,628 $133,381 $407,933 $361,810

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable $17,653 $17,653 $12,550
Payroll deductions and withholdings $46,508 46,508 21,920
Due to teachers' association 177 177 3,269
Interfund payable 7,663 7,663 1,858
Due to student groups $210,576 210,576 213,700

Total liabilities 210,576 54,348 17,653 282,577 253,297

NET ASSETS:
Restricted for:

Unemployment claims 115,728 115,728 99,695
Scholarship payments $9,628 9,628 8,818

Total net assets $9,628 $115,728 $125,356 $108,513
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LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
Fiduciary Fund

Comparative Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
for the Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

Private Purpose Unemployment
Trust Fund Compensation Flexible
Scholarship Insurance Spending Totals

Funds Trust Fund Account 2012 2011

REVENUES:

Local sources:
Board Contributions $25,000 $219,817 $244,817
Employee withholdings 45,484 45,484 $44,190
Other Contributions $2,005 2,005 4,165
Interest on Investments 5 133 138 294

Total Revenues 2,010 70617 219,817 292,444 48,649

EXPENDITURES:

Current Expense:
Undistributed Expenditures:

Unemployment claims 554,584 $54,584 $77,844
Other expenses $219,817 219,817 558
Scholarship payments $1,200 1,200 2,800

Total Expenditures 1,200 54,584 219,817 275,601 81,202

Change in net assets 810 16,033 16,843 (32,553)

Total net aesets- July 1 8,818 99,695 108,513 141,066

Total net aeeets- June 30 59,628 $115,728 $125,356 5108,513
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LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
Student Activity Agency Fund

Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements
for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2012

H-3

JUNIOR/SENIOR HIGH SCHOOLS:
Lower Cape May Regional:

Activities
Athletic

Total

Balance
July 1, 2011

$213.909
(209)

$213,700

Cash
Receipts

$351.182
67,006

$418,188

82

Accounts
Cash Payable

Disbursements June 30. 2012

$357,491
63,821

$421,312

Balance
June 30, 2012

$207,600
2.976

$210,576
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LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
Payroll Agency Fund

Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements
for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2012

Balance
July 1, 2011 Additions Deletions

Balance
June 30.2012

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents $27.047

$27,047

$19.141,422 $19.114,121

$19.114.121

$54.348

Total assets $19,141,422 $54,348

LIABILITIES:

Payroll deductions
and withholdings

Summer pay
Net payroll
Due to teachers' association
Interfund payable

$21,920 $7,963,038 $7,938,450 $46,508
449,267 449,267

10,722,442 10,722,442
3,269 537 3,629 177
1,858 6,138 333 7,663

$27,047 $19,141,422 $19,114,121 $54,348Total liabilities
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LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
General Long. Tenn Debt Account Group

Statement of Serial Bonds
June 30, 2012

exhIbit 1-1

Issue

Refunding Bonds

School District
Improvements

Carried Forward

Date
of

Issue

10/01/2001

711512006

Amount
of

Issue

$2,985,000

595,000

Annual Maturities

Date Amount

03/01/2013
03/0112014
03/01/2015

$305,000
300,000
315,000

07/1512011

Rate
of

Interest

4.125%
4.125%
4.250%

Balance
July 1, 2011

$1,230,000

155,000

$1,385,000

Issued Retired

$310,000

155,000

$465,000

Balance
June 30, 2012

$920,000

$920,000



exhibit 1-1

LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
General Long-Term Debt Account Group

Statement of Serial Bonds
June 30, 2012

Issue

Date
of

Issue

Amount
of

Issue

Annual Maturities Rate
of

Interest
Balance

July 1, 2011 Issued Retired
Balance

June 30, 2012Date Amount

Brought Forward $1,385,000 $465,000 $920,000

Refunding Bonds 1011512009 $7,215,000 0610112013 $585,000 2.000"10 7,055,000 585,000 6,470,000
0610112014 575,000 2.000"10

CD 06101/2015 615,000 2.250"10
g) 0610112016 600,000 4.000"10

06101/2017 600,000 4.000"10
06101/2018 645,000 4.000"10
06101/2019 665,000 4.000"10
06101/2020 735,000 4.000"10
06101/2021 730,000 4.000"10
06101/2022 720,000 4.000"10

Total
$8,440,000 $1,050,000 $7,390,000
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LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Debt Service Fund

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Variance
Original Budget Final Final to
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Actual

REVENUES:
Local sources:

Local tax levy $1,418,460 51,418,460 $1,418,460
Miscellaneous

Total revenues- local sources 1,418,460 1,418!460 1,418,460

State sources:
Debt service aid type II 155,808 155!808 155,808

Total revenues - state sources 155,808 155!808 155,808

Total Revenues 1,574,268 1,574,268 1!574,268

EXPENDITURES:
Regular debt service:

Principal on lease purchase agreement 230,000 230,000 230,000
Interest on lease purchase agreement 36,613 36,613 36,610 S3
Interest 302,857 302,857 302.856 1
Redemption of principal 1,050,000 1,050,000 1,050,000

Total Expenditures 1,619,470 1,619,470 1,619,466 4

Excess (Deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (45,202) (45,202) (45,198) 4

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfer in

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess (Deficiency) of revenues and Other
Financing Sources Over (Under) Expenditures
and Other Financing Sources (Uses) (45,202) (45,202) (45,198) 4

Fund Balances, July 1 312,566 312,566 312,566

Fund Balances, June 30 5267,364 $267,364 5267,368 54

Recapitulation of Excess (Deficiency) or
revenues over (under) expenditures

Budgeted Fund Balance (545,202) (545,202) (545,198) S4
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LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
General Long-Term Debt Account Group

Statement of Certificates of Participation
June 30, 2012

Exhibit 1-4

Issue

School District
Improvements

Date
of

Issue

06/15/1999

Amount
of

Issue

$2,760,000

Annual Maturities

Date Amount

06/01/2013
0610112014

$240,000
250,000

Rate
of

Interest

5.125%
5.125%

Balance
July 1,2011

$720,000

$720,000

Issued Retired

$230,000

$230,000

Balance
June 30, 2012

$490,000

$490,000



Statistical Section



LDwa' Cape u.y RegIonal School DIaIrtct EldIIbIt.J.1
Net AAeIa br Component.
LaIl Ten fbQJ Yeara
(8DCtU3l .. of~)

FISCal Year EndIng Juno 30,

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Govemmt:nlallll:llvlliOs:
lnveslCClInC8jlIIalasscts, net 01rclalOddebt S 8,519,823 S 9,356,882 S 10,093,434 S 10,294,825 S 10,399,170 S 10.434.44& S 10,542,318 S 11.384,603 S 11,495,947 S 12,182,168
Restrtc:lodlor:

CapItal projOcIs 1,107.891 498,652 391,617 482.676 <104.960 11.617 11.704 11.794 11,824 21,919
Spocjal rtNenu& (52.797) (60,890) (76.589) (76.589) (91.239)
Debt aenrlco 193.196 389,293 13,966 (479) 11,392 397.651 226.175 265,456 268,382 267,386
OUIOrpurposes 1.789.537 2.070,559 1,687,652 1.424.376 1.301,106 1.144,827 900.670 566,181 622.839 2,080,378

Unrostrtctod !655.7471 !1,373,8281 !1,395,5601 !1.590,1311 !1,493,9471 !1.716,5881 !1,813,3821 !I,824,7971 !I,468,09OI !I,822,7921
TOIa!govommental w:tlYlliosnet assots S 10,901.903 S 10.941;158 S 1017301229 S 1015341478 S 10.546,192 S 10.1801514 $ 9.8671505 S 101383,207 S 101912.682 S 12,9291041

Buslnoss·typo actlYltles:
Inves1ed In capital assets. not 01retatCCldebl S 82.734 $ 81.912 S 73.981 S 82.213 S 44,760 S 58.034 $ 49.OS9 S 44.048 S 38,089 S 32,838
UnreslllCted 23,065 35,128 21,082 25,325 31,825 17~ 37,078 21,527 13,933 58,563

:g Total bu!Ilnoss·type IIl:IlvItlos net assots S IOS,819 $ 1171040 $ 951043 S 871538 S 761605 $ 731922 $ 86137 $ 651575 $ 52.022 $ 91,399

OIstrlcl·wtdo:
Invested Incapital assets. not 01rotalOddebt S 8.602,557 S 9,438,794 $ 10,167,395 S 10,356,838 S 10,443,950 S 10,490,460 S 10,591,377 $ 11.408.851 $ 11,534.036 $ 12.215.004
Rostrtcwd:

capjIal ptOjOClS 1,107,891 498,652 391,617 482.676 <104.980 11,617 11,704 11.764 11.824 21,919
SpocIaI revenu& (60,880) (76,589) (76,589) (91.239)
Debt sonrlco 389.293 13,966 (479) 11.392 397.851 226,175 265,456 268,382 267,368
0ttI0r puzposos 1,789,537 2,070.559 1,687,652 1,424,376 1,301,106 1,144,827 900,670 566.161 622.839 2,080,378

Unrostrtc:lod !632,6821 !1,338,5OO1 !I,374,4761 !1,564,6061 !1,482,022I !1,638.7001 !I,776.2941 !1,803.2701 !I ,472. I5!l !I,564~1
TOIa!d!strIcI not _ts $ 10,867.323 $ "10581768 S 101825~ S 10lSOl6 $ 101622.797 $ 10.254.436 S 9,9531642 S 10.448.782 S 10.964.704 $ 13.0201440



~ Capo May ~ School Dlalrlct EItlIlII1 .1-2
Changoa In NcI As-, ....t Ten FbcoI Yoars
(accnssJ basis 01a=cmIII>Q)

F1sad Yoar EncIng June 30.

2003 2004 200S 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

ElqIonsea:
GowemmentalllCllvities:

Instruction:
Rogu!ar S 10.699.023 S 10.979.145 S 11.014.560 S 9.546.437 S 10.212.659 $ 10.786.022 $ 10.340.318 S 10.213.080 $ 10.002.766 S 9.$42.~
SpccIaJ- 2.224.898 2.633.253 2.710.593 2.337.919 2.337.351 2.581.306 2.881.873 2.958,499 3,409.27& 2.846.667
0lIIer InsttuctIon 844.817 692,273 668,738 692.638 840.481 679.18& 749.364 827.746 703.005 602.021

~SenrIcGs:
Tullion 1.738.727 1,890,367 2.oas.072 2,27G,778 2.S17,2tl2 2.~.051 2.905.570 2.818.501 2,2$3,954 2.023.448
SIudenl & In$1JucIlon reIaIed SGMces 2.228.301 2.343.363 2.318,444 2.01&,259 1.982.729 2.069.659 2.302.930 2.240.724 2,249.542 2.330.130
ScIIooI8dmInIsbaIIve 5CIYices 953.243 1.052.120 992.591 864.713 870.868 907.388 918.903 971.450 975,310 908.336
General and Ilu$iness IIdm:nIs1l81iYe5e1Vlces 717.700 705.421 720.640 943,029 918.194 993,832 1.073,802 893,075 1.085.092 954.279
P1anI operationS and rnaIn1cnanc:o 2.082.&73 2.381.168 2.753.588 2.029.431 2.375.246 2.513.071 2.224.952 2.675,579 2.494.681 2.738.751
PupllII8nSpClt8llcn 1.168.977 1,287.846 1.494.774 1.278.671 1.210.771 1.277.827 1,295,941 1.248.048 1.321.877 1.393.584
Buslnclss and OIIIOr support GOrvlcGs 371.874 425.531 443.118
Unallacatod omployoo IIIlIIEIIItI 4.711.470 5.844.789 5,812,288 4.735.922 5,254.751 5.410.188 5.999.882

Special schools 12.882 9.651 14.380 23.589 29.334 20.868 4.660 2.421 19.225 25,022
Charter 5ehools 10.58& 11,161 40.091 19.653 8.950 15.925
Interest on lon9'term debt 760,033 715,331 677,279 630.482 604.952 54&,538 555.632 335.481 381.877 326.873
UnalloCated dep.eclaIlon 59,268 &5,630 46.718 40724 67,128 89,035 98,914 29,208 139,066 51,882

Total gave_tal activities Gxpcn$es 23,692,899 22.'82~ 25.980,584 27,303,189 29,618,596 30.868,044 30.100.608 30.484.541 30,445.825 29,843,122

Buslness-typo actIvltles:
Food GOlVicc 910.317 933,576 902.042 1,057,006 1.083.694 1.101.589 1.099.231 1.078.694 1.021.039 879.08&

TotaI __ 1ype actiYIIies_ 910.317 !e,S76 902,042 1057,006 1.~694 1,101,589 1,099~ 1.078.884 1.~039 87908&
Total district ell!)Cll$eS S 24.ii03.018 $ 28,095,638 $ 26,882.608 5.360.175 $31.987.633 $31.543.435 $36$2;207$36. .3§0 $31.199; 531. .8&4

CD.... I'roIP'am Rovenucs:
Gowemmental_:

0pe18IIng gmnts and conIrIlluIions $ 3,859.229 $ 4.011.309 S 3.860.288 S 2.691.000 S 4.918.702 S 5.298.181 $ 2.764.272 S 3,106,174 S 3,099.000 S 2.983,149

Totalgaoremmenlal actiYIIies pIVgf8m rev_ 3,859.229 4.011.309 3.880.288 2,691,000 4.918,702 ~181 2,764.272 3.106,174 !099,OOO 2.983,149

c=-



~ Copo May RDaIonal ScIIoaI DblrIc:I _101-2
ctIangos In HoIAa-. I.aITon FIIcoI Veara
(BOCIIJ8/ bBsIs 01 Bt:COUIIIIng)

FIscal VC81Ending June 30.

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

1Iusiness-1jpO 8C1M1Je$:
0Iarg0s tor~:

food_ S 437.871 S 442.040 S 442.350 S 4211.1175 S 480.980 S 462.874 $ 462.692 $ 474.616 $ 443.652 S 453.884
Operallng gmnIS and ccnIr1!lulions m.785 297.1109 276.057 422.1121 429,264 444.702 507.187 408.454 370.726 399.491
CI!j)I1al gmnIS and conIlIbullcnS

TotaIliuSInO$S IjpO 8CIMtIes ~ rev_ 745.6S6 739.649 720,407 851.796 910~ fJ(fI,:rT6 969,879 883,070 814,m 853,375
TotaI_ ptOgtDm rev_ I 4.604;685 $ 4;15O.BI $ 4;600.695 I 3.642;796 $ s.828.948 I ii~.m $ 3.734;151 I 3;iiiiii.244 $ 3.i113;3'ii $ 3:1138.524

HoI{ExpOnSO~:
Govemmenlal acllYllle$ S (19.833.470) S (21.160.951) $ (22.100.276) $ (24.612.169) $ (24.699.994) $ (25.587.883) $ (27.33e.334) $ (27.358.367) $ (27.346.1125) $ (26.959.973)
BusInoss-1jpO OCIMlles 1'64,68'1 ~'939271 (18163S1

124~~~!
~'73 4801 !'94~'31 ~'29 3521 !195.6241 ~2086811 !125,71°1Total dlstotcl-w!dG nel OxpQ!lS& 1119:998.131: I 121:544:611: i 122.281:911: I S ~24:873:444: $ 125:782 ~76: $ i27:!!!:m: 1 127.564.191: $ i~:B3~: 1 127•085•883

a-ral Rownuea end 0Ih0r Changes In HoIAaaeIa:
GovellllllClllal 0CIIvIIie3:

Pnlper1y _ levied lor genenlIllUlpOSClS, not S 11.218.687 $ 12.196.179 $ 12.420.691 S 13,600,629 S 15.107.862 S 15.497.072 $ 18.116.955 S 16,761.633 $ 17.432.098 $ 17.~.74O
TaxcslCl¥lod tor CICOIseMca 1.429.958 1.303.318 1.144.222 1,251.185 1,391.108 1.400,984 1,212.021 1.401.764 1.427.947 1.418.480
IJnre!IIrtcIGCI gran1S and CCI'IIriIlUIion 7.087.748 7.616,732 8.066.895 9.533,173 7,904.209 8.117.960 9.614.151 9.721.599 8.977.954 9.730.774
u_tncome 439.054 376.558 406.939 196,431 469.511 373,179 221.358 164.053 231,301 211.358
TmnslolII !149.7481 ~oool !160,0001 1,~0001 !181 ,0001 1'87,0001 1141,1601 !175.oool 1193,0001 1165•0001

TOlaJgovo_ activities 20.004.879 212m 21.888,747 24,416,418 24,711,708 25.222.165 27,023,325 27.874,069 27,8!!,300 28.976.332

Buslnoos-1jpO 8CIMIIa:I:
InveslmcJnI earnings 148 157 1.092 1.517 24.530 407 2112 108 87
MlsC:eUanoousIncome 9.481 31.613
Transtolll 149.748 205,000 160,000 165,000 161000 167,000 141160 175,000 193,000 185,000

Total ~type actIvUlos 149,746 205,148 159.638 197,705 162.517 191.530 141,587 175,262 193.108 165,087
CD TOlaJdlstotcl-w!do 12[154.425 i 21;49U33 $ 5048•365 S 24.614;123 i 24.874,225 I 25)413;715 I 27.16U92 I 28;049,331 I 28.069;0Ii08 I 29,141,419
N

ChIIngD In HoI_
Govo_ 8CIMtIes $ 171.209 $ 136.834 S (211.529) $ (195.751) S 11.714 S (365.676) $ (313,009) S 515.702 S 529.475 $ 2.01B.359
BusIncss-lypo actIvtIlos 1141S1!! "~ ~1:!!Z1

I~~!
110,9331

1:&:=: iF 120.5621 1'~S531 39.377, i S S I I $Total dIstrIcI_ 158,294 148. !23.¥26) s 761 S 1 794' 495,140 51 922 2,055.736



~ Capeillay AogIonaI School Dlstri;t EldIIlIIt J..3
Fund IIaIancea, Govemmenlal Funds,
LaII Ten fIIQl YeaJS
{1ItI)d.f;o(I1lCCtUIII1IiiSis of a«amIi'Ig}

Fiscal Year Enctng Juno 30.

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

General Fund:
Reserved lor:

Encumbrances $ 102.412 S 35.497 S 31.967 $ 130.610 S 1.512 $ $ S $ 79.120 S 226.667
CapitaJ reserve 10.829.00 10.829 10.954 11,264 11.392 11.617 11.704 11.764 11.624 21.919
MainIenance roserve 50.000
Legally reslIicted 295.098 18.466
Excess surplus 1.372.027 1.658.667 1.422.730 1.273.766 1.229.594 8lI5.S47 795.670 532.959 523.519 983.233
DoslgnalOd lor Subsequent Years Expel. 600.258

Unresorved 622,005 457418 337,334 149,535 247919 499,739 1212•3701 1442•1941 1204,4341 1253~!l
Total genorallund S 2.602.371 $ 213811117 $ ';802,985 $ 115651195 $ 11490.417 S 1.306.903 S 595.004 S 102.529 S 4101029 S 118291090

ADOUIcr Governmental FWlds
Reserved:

CO Encumlln!ncGs
(0) Cob! service reserve $ 267.362 S 267.362 S 267.383 $ 267.383 S 267.383 $ 267.383 $ 267.383 $ 267.383 $ 267.383 S 267.383

Unresorved. reported In:
Speclalrovenuo lund (52.797) (60.680) (76.589) (76.589) (91.239)
capital projee1S lund 829.700 497.623 113.300 204.029
PellTl81lll1lllund 20.000 20.000 20.000 20.000 20.000 20.000 20.000 20.000 20.000 20.000
Cob! service lund 193.196 211.659 97.135 67.935 201.203 200.585 27.610 52.364 45.203 5

TOI8I all CIIIor govemmental funds $ 1~71491 S 9871044 S 4381918 $ 462;138 S 411.9n $ 396.709 $ 3141973 $ 3391727 S 3321586 S 2671386



Lower Cepe May Regional School District ExhlbllJ-4
Changes In Fund Balances, Govemmentel Funds,
LaIt Ten FIIICIII Years
(modJllBd acctVa/ basis of aCCOllllling)

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Rovenu88
Tax levy $ 12,647,623 S 13,499,495 S 13,564,913 S 14,851,814 S 16,498,988 S 16,898,056 $ 17,328,976 $ 18,163,417 $ 18,860,045 S 19,199,200
Tu!Iion ch8Iges 26,883 31,945 72,717 66,516 27,592 4,754 4,389 57,576 31,156
Transpottallon lees 192,549 194,138 174,605 179,044 146,383 120,665 96,095 62,531 82,301 76,611
Interest earnings 175,579 101,437 74,265 149,883 183,733 120,270 37,146 18,096 5,681 95
Miscellaneous 56,295 49,040 85,645 46,568 110,233 145,315 81,921 68,556 90,743 103,496
State sources 9,976,634 10,502,856 10,939,460 11,338,098 11,906,033 12,480,354 11,524,275 11,433,595 10,746,638 11,473,290
Federal sources 938,291 1,125,183 ':007,230 869,585 916,448 917,752 853,955 1,389,046 1,323,316 1.240,633

Tolalrevenue 24,013,654 25,504,094 25:919,035 27,501:488 29,791,410 30,687,386 29,928,757 31,155,243 31,168,300 32,124,481

Expenditures
Instruc:tlon

Regular Insttuction 8,346,622 8,417,895 8,651,378 8,884,5n 9,446,767 9,752,046 9,482,761 9,804,829 8,939,499 8,933,128
Special education InsIructlon 1,839,027 2,124,915 2,219,860 2,337,919 2,337,351 2,561,306 2,881,873 2,956,499 3,409,275 2,646,667
Other special instruction 532,819 556,633 546,030 592,638 640,461 679,185 749,364 827,746 703,005 802,021

SI4lJ)OIt Services:
Tu!Iion 1,738,727 1,890,367 2,085,072 2,270,n6 2,517,262 2,650,051 2,905,570 2,816,501 2,253,954 2,023,446
Student & instruction related services 1,641,875 1,891,182 1,898,717 2,015,259 1,982,729 2,069,659 2,302,930 2,240,724 2,249,542 2,330,130
School admlnislra!lve services 787,919 649,013 812,890 864,713 870,868 907,388 916,903 971,450 975,310 908,338
General and business admin.servlces 829,915 649,516 900,343 878,648 799,005 872,828 897,038 851,729 837,514 873,360
Plant ql&rations and maInlenance 1,615,350 l,n4,237 2,037,571 2,014.209 2,133,114 2,161,272 2,524,800 2,886,824 2,610,7n 2,687,255
PI4liI transpottallon 982,769 1,039,233 1,145,068 1,160,300 1,210,nl 1.2n,827 1,295,641 1,248,046 1,321 sn 1,393,564
Other support services 3,450,099 3,988,267 4,215,933 4,711,470 5,644,789 5,812,288 4,735,922 5,254,751 5,410,186 5,999,682

Speclal Sc:OOoIs 12,862 9,651 14,360 23,569 29,334 20,868 4,660 2,421 1,716
Charter Sc:OOoIs 10,585 11,161 40,091 19,853 8,950 15,925 17,509 25,022
C8pIIal ouIIay 14,512,130 854,313 830,923 247,071 1,067,787 350,440 295,513 234,514 352,853 143,521
Deblservlce:

PrtncipaI 795,000 810,000 815,000 645,000 870,000 990,000 1,015,000 1,210,000 1.200,000 1.260,000
lnIerest and other chaJges 760,033 722,382 684,037 645,239 609,761 614:014 557,132 426.221 391,944 339,466

Total expendl!unls 38,057,732 25,790,765 26,897~ 27:531,239 30,370,949 30,719:'46 30,561.232 31,532,257 30,674,961 30,585,618
Excess (Deficiency) oll8Vo1W85

over (meier) expendltures (14,044,078) (286,671) (978,258) (29,751) (579,539) (31,782) (652,475) (3n,OI4) 493,339 1,538,863

O1her financing 80Urcee (_)
Proceeds fIom Ilono\W1g 595,000 7,665,788
Payment 10 escrow agent (7,581,493)
Transfers In 102,410 206,375 8,145 21,066 35,872 285,520 6,144 115
Transfers out !252,1561 !41',3751 !'56,'451 !'86,0661 !'96,8721 !452,5201 1'47,3041 1'75,1151 !'93,OOOI !'65,OOOI

Total other financing SOIWC8S(uses) !'49,7461 !205,OOOI !'50,OOOI 1'65,0001 434,000 1'67,0001 1'41,1601 190,70n !'93,OOOI !'65,OOOI

Net Change In Md balances S 114,193,8241 S ~491,6711 S 1',126,2581 S 1194,7511 $ 1'45,5391 $ 1'98,7821 S 1793,6351 S 1467,7211 $ 300,339 $ 1,373,863

Debt service as a percentage of
noncapitaIexpendiluras 6.60% 6.15% 5.75% 5.46% 5.05% 5.28% 5.19% 5.23% 5.25% 5.32%

Source: District records

Nola: Noncapilalexpendltures ara totalexpendllur8s less capiIaI ouIIay.



Lower Cape May Regional School District
General Fund - Other Local Revenue by Source
Last Ten Rscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Exhibit J-5

Fiscal Year Interest on Insurance Other Use of Adult Education
Endina June 30, Investments Tuition Refunds Transe2rtaion Refunds Facilities Pr~ram Fees Miscellaneous Total

2003 $72,969 $26,683 $192,549 $8,940 $32,097 $333,238
2004 50,587 31,945 $ 570 194,136 6,740 41,730 325,708
2005 66,065 72,717 174,605 10,812 35,817 360,016
2006 127,878 68,516 179,044 $ 8,592 $ 20,175 11,054 6,747 422,006
2007 146,656 27,592 18,704 148,383 31,819 17,879 14,067 27,334 432,434
2008 101,531 4,754 49,667 120,865 28,224 26,423 12,503 10,473 354,440

co 2009 30,668 4,389 40,533 98,095 3,194 34,617 . 2,981 403 214,880
CI1 2010 18,096 21,285 82,531 5,237 29,623 1,536 5,630 163,938

2011 5,621 57,576 5,798 82,301 50,919 22,696 761 5,569 231,241
2012 4,779 31,156 27,060 76,611 55,311 10,985 5,361 211,263

$ 624,850 $ 325,328 $ 163,617 $ 1,349,120 $ 183,296 $ 162,398 $ 69,394 $ 171,161 $ 3,049,164

Source: District records



Lower Cape May Regional ScIIooI Dlatrlct
As..eod Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property,
Last Ten FIIcaI V....

Exl\lbll J.6

~b !l!lYBI~lIIIMm!
FIIcaI ToIaIcnct
Vear PublIc Tax· Sc:IIooITax e.IImaIed Actual

Ended ToIaI~ UtIlJtIes Net Valuation ExenqJI Role (County EqualIzed)
June 30. V_Und ResIdentIal FlInn !!!II: Qtarm CcmmercIaI IndIIIIJtaI --.1 VaIUD II Taxable "'-" b Value

2003 $ 6.667.300 $ 144.669.800 $ 713.100 $ 162.900 $ 17.937.900 $ 466.100 $ 110.637.100 S 246.000 S 110.883.100 $ 8.184.300 $ 0.455 $ 225.832.378
2004 18.928.500 255.094.500 936.100 158.400 28.944.900 746.100 304.809.100 299.552 305.108.852 8.957.100 0.286 262.778.052
2005 19.493.000 256.750.500 936.100 158.400 28.934.400 746.100 307.019.100 260.603 307.279.703 8.957.100 0.275 330.629.236
2000 19.000.900 259.845.100 1.295.400 180.300 28.934.400 746.700 309.783.400 193.518 309.978.918 8.987.000 0.334 398.452.287
2007 29.117.100 432.355.900 3.610.800 239.800 40.778.000 1.189.500 507.289.300 249.741 507.539.041 8.688.100 0.171 465.437.929
2008 33.282.200 433.388.800 2.591.800 73.100 40.310.900 1.189.500 510.874.500 257.281 511.131.780 9.484.500 0.178 492.180.703
2009 29.943.800 439.225.500 3.463.800 185.800 41.342.300 1.189.500 515.330.300 274.134 515.804.434 9.484.500 0.174 550.005.474
2010 28.223.300 443.515.200 3.562.300 216.100 40.695.500 1.189.500 515.431.900 266.333 515.898.283 9.970.200 0.173 469.807.800
2011 20.998.200 385.812.800 3.828.800 205.800 35.180.100 1.088.100 446.090.000 225.357 446.315.357 9.143.300 0.202 490.883.236
2012 19.404.000 389.387.800 3.828.800 205.800 38.215.900 1.088.100 450.108.200 210.286 450.318.466 9.445.000 0.191 494.415.656

Source: Uunldpll Tax "--

Note:
Real property Is rtqIIrod 10 bo asscsSCld at sane percenlago 0I11UOvaluo (Ialr or INIlI<cI valuo) ostalltishOO by each courtly board 01 taxatiOn.

ReassossmonI 0CCU1$ wilen OIlIered by IhO Coun1y Board 01 TIIl<aIkln

II Taxallio Valuo cI Mach!neIy.lmptovemenlS 8IlCIEquipment 01 TClepIIono. TcIoglllllh 8IlCIMossenget Systam Ccrn;IanIas

b Tax mUlS810 per $100



Lower CIjIe May RegIonal ScIIooI DIatrId
AuaaccI Value and Actual Value or Taxable Property •
..... TenFlacaI Y_

Exhibit J.6

IiIIU!!O!a!I1Im
FlacaI TOIaIDI-'
Year PuIIUc To· SdtooITo Ea!Imated Actual

Ended TOIaI~ UUIJtles Net Valuallon ExempI RaIe (County EquaJIHd)
June!!, V_1..aftd ResIdentIal Ferm!!!l: orann c-nen:tal InduItftaI ADaI1JMnI Value • Tuable "-"t b Value

2003 17.363.500 $ 515.888.600 S 175.371.500 $ 58.263.000 S 826.888.600 S 815.383 S 1127.501.963 5 218.497.100 S 0.180 S 1.380.573.922
2004 57.373.400 1.509.757.200 368.225.000 139.371.000 2.074.728.600 988.795 2.075.893.395 327.039.200 0.079 1.tl81.837 .252
2005 52.899.800 1.587.400.100 352.SSO.500 137.853.100 2.110.813.500 918.197 2.111.729.897 327.039.200 0.072 1.942.839.285
2008 45.893.000 1.847.701.200 349.0112.000 131.993.800 2.174.870.000 813.297 2.175.483.297 328.172.100 0.0112 2.242.849.910
2007 45.803.800 1.678.813.200 351.105.400 127.779.200 2.203.301.400 748.057 2.204.049.457 328.895.200 0.088 2.503.152.723
2008 43.844.800 1.893.968.100 350.790.200 125.900.300 2.214.303.400 728.2112 2.215.031.8112 327.858.700 0.087 2.888.901.384
2009 41.928.800 1.722.295.200 352.884.200 121.849.800 2.238.758.000 785.589 2.239.523.589 327.747.900 0.087 2.782.533.630
2010 57.139.000 2.138.841.000 453.981.300 148.999.800 2.798.981.100 952.985 2.799.914.085 420.382.900 0.053 2.793.454.421
2011 58.125.700 2.149.223.800 439.858.800 143.8112.000 2.791.090.100 798.181 2.791.888.291 420.830.400 0.054 2.848.404.511

CO 2012 57.451.900 2.180.183,500 435.731.100 143.081.100 2.798.407.800 750.291 2.797.157.881 419.138,800 0.054 2.904.884.781.....
Soun:e: IIunIcIpaI To AuesI«

Note:
Real prqlC11y is rcquirecI to be assessed 81 some perccnIaga alINe value (Iai. or maJI<et value) esIaIlI!shOd by oadI coumy boaRS cllaxallon.

ReassessmenI OCCUI$ wilen ordered by IIIe Counly Board cI Tuation

• T8lI8bIe Value cI Mach!nery.1m;lmvemenlS and Equipmen1 01 Telephone. Telegraph and ~r System Ccmpanios

b Tax raIIls are per 5100



Low", Capo May Regional School DIaIJtct
AuMaed Velue end Actual Value 01 Teuble 1'nIpeIty,
L..ut Ten FIacaI YUIll

ExhlbltH

Iaolll!lallll:m!ll
Fllcel TOIeI DItecI
Yeer PUblic Tex- ScbooITex EsUmaIed AcIueI

Eftded Total Aaeued UtUIIIeI Net Valuation ExcmpI Rate (~ EqualIzed)
June~ Ve_Lend ResIdential Fenn !!!II. ot..... Commerdel Induelrlal ADarIInohl Value e T ... bIe Propeny b Value

2003 $ 35.040.300 $ 1.266.401.200 $ 3.0G00.l00 $ 753.900 S 13M24.ooo S 1.124.800 S 6.059.200 S 1.443.203.500 S 5.349.591 S 1.448.553.091 S 107.542.800 S 0.854 S 1.905.719.623
2004 31.868.200 1.292.620.600 3.200.800 890.000 130.204.600 1.124.800 6.059.200 1.465.968.200 4,245.714 1.470.213.914 109.210.500 0.847 2.346.825.567
2005 30.765.500 1.320.048.900 3.584.0G00 946.700 131,287.900 1.124.800 6.059.200 1.493.797.0G00 3.535.783 1.497.333.183 110.162.100 0.652 2,913.105.728
2006 29.777.500 1.347.706.100 3.489.700 899.200 130.801.500 6.059.200 1.518.733.200 2,738.571 1.521.471.nl 114.453.300 0.905 3.530.553.715
2007 139.128.300 4,221.414.0G00 10.553.100 1.188.000 310.sn.500 13.262.500 4.696.123.800 6.437.653 4.702.561.453 324.196.0G00 0.297 4.114.474,584
2008 133.431.600 4,217.537.900 9.472,800 1.092.000 309.843.900 13.262.500 4.684.640.800 6.343.694 4.690.984.294 325,244.700 0.301 4.919,878.070
2009 135.540.800 4,236.864.100 S.612,600 951.900 309.691.200 14.165.900 4.702.826.500 6.790.522 4.709.617.022 319.n6.100 0.306 4.503.!l93,506
2010 98.832.700 3.693.987.300 6.757.300 967.900 27S.537.0G00 13.375.0G00 4.089.338.000 8.762.972 4.096.120.972 281.510.700 0.351 4.418.591.951
2011 91.427.900 3.694.390.0G00 6.219.800 942.300 278.275.900 13.37S.0G00 4.084.631.700 5.957.340 4.090.569.040 286.718.900 0.355 4,227,524.473
2012 87.92I.0G00 3.705.980.700 4.460.700 911.900 278.929.100 13.161.0G00 4.089.365.200 6.102.592 4.095.467.792 286.068.300 0.362 4.034.131.nl

CO
CIO Source: u..nJcIpaI Tex AaNuM

Note:
Rilal pIq)CIIy Is roquIrcd 10 bel aslICSlKId aI somo petCCnlllllo oIlNQ.aluo (lair orlNllloJl.aIuo) oslalltished by each c:ounly boallI 0I1a11a1lOn.

Reassessment _ ""*' ordered by thO Counly Board 01 Taxalion

e Taxable Valuo 01 MadI!nGty.lrnprovoments and Equ!I)rnCnI 01TeIe;lhOnO. TClklglBj)lland Mosscngor Syslem Compan!cs

b To flIlOSaropcrSIOO



Lower Cape May Regional School District
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(rate per $100 of BSS8ssed vBlue)

ExhlbltJ·7

Borough of West Cape Mav

Fiscal West Cal!! Mal School District Direct Rate Overlal!l!lns Rates Total
Year General Direct and

Ended ObllgaUon Borough of Regional Cape May Overlapping Tax
June30z Basic Rate Debt Servlca Total Direct West Cal!! May School Coun!! Rate

2003 $ 0.439 $ 0.016 $ 0.455 $ 0.439 $ 0.508 $ 0.439 $ 1.841
2004 0.250 0.016 0.266 0.253 0.313 0.248 1.080
2005 0.260 0.015 0.275 0.254 0.384 0.267 1.180
2006 0.317 0.017 0.334 0.271 0.443 0.272 1.320
2007 0.160 0.011 0.171 0.236 0.317 0.176 0.900
2008 0.167 0.009 0.176 0.279 0.306 0.184 0.945
2009 0.165 0.009 0.174 0.273 0.335 0.197 0.979
2010 0.164 0.009 0.173 0.283 0.333 0.202 0.991
2011 0.112 0.090 0.202 0.337 0.389 0.242 1.170
2012 0.191 0.346 0.356 0.256 1.149

~Irl m ~pe Mil!

Fiacel Cal!! M!!I CI!! School District Direct Rate Overlal!l!lns Rates Total
Year General DIrect and

Ended ObllgaUon City of Regional Cape May Overlapplna Tax
June30z BasIc Rate Debt Service Total Direct Cal!! Mal School Coun!! BDII

2003 $ 0.160 $ 0.160 $ 0.578 $ 0.544 $ 0.558 $ 1.840
2004 0.079 0.079 0.215 0.233 0.233 0.760
2005 0.072 0.072 0.224 0.234 0.230 0.760
2006 0.062 0.062 0.247 0.245 0.216 o.no
2007 0.068 0.068 0.207 0.274 0.221 o.no
2008 0.067 0.067 0.226 0.307 0.233 0.833
2009 0.067 0.067 0.215 0.320 0.251 0.853
2010 0.053 0.053 0.196 0.2n 0.214 0.740
2011 0.054 0.054 0.220 0.283 0.227 0.784
2012 0.054 0.054 0.237 0.294 0.242 0.827

Township of Lower

Fiacel Lower Townshll! School DIstrict Direct Rate Overlal!l!lns Rates Total
Year General DIrect and

Ended Obligation Township Regional Cape May Overlapplna Tax
June30z Basic Rate Debt Service Total Direct of Lower School Coun!! BDII

2003 $ 0.803 $ 0.051 $ 0.854 $ 0.n6 $ 0.541 $ 0.439 $ 2.610
2004 0.797 0.050 0.847 0.n2 0.557 0.464 2.640
2005 0.791 0.061 0.852 0.799 0.599 0.480 2.730
2006 0.874 0.031 0.905 0.844 0.642 0.489 2.880
2007 0.287 0.010 0.297 0.324 0.229 0.170 1.020
2008 0.291 0.010 0.301 0.349 0.230 0.181 1.061
2009 0.296 0.010 0.306 0.366 0.247 0.193 1.112
2010 0.351 0.351 0.433 0.285 0.230 1.299
2011 0.355 0.355 0.443 0.2n 0.231 1.306
2012 0.362 0.362 0.443 0.273 0.229 1.307

Source: Municipal Tax Collector

Note: NJSA 18A:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a general fund tax levy . The levy when added to other
components of the district's net budget may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by more than the spending growth
limitation calculated as follows: the prebudget year net budget increased by the cost of living or 2.5 percent, whichever is greater,
plus any spending growth adjustments.

a The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget and the
Net Valuation Taxable.

b Rates for debt service are based on each year's requirements.
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L.owet cape May Regional Sdlool Dlllrlct
Principal Property To Payers,
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Borpugb 01Wgt1 CaPO MOX

Taxpayer

Depot Travel Park. Inc.
Rayson PtqI6IIies
Wibraham Mansion, LLC
CVS
Cape May Lumber
100ivIduaI .1
Cape Wesl Associa1es
Individual 12
100ivIduaI .3
Individual 14

TctaI

City 01CaPO MOX

Taxpayer

Congress Hall LLC
OceanIronl PtqI6IIies LLC
AOIS Inc.
Ocean Club Hotel CM. LLC
Cape Coachman Really, LLC
Osllrey lJInding 0eveI0pmenl Co. LLC
Kejzman Enterprises Inc
Montreal Inn
Keyslone Inc
100ivIduaI '1

T01aI

Township 01Lpwet

Taxpayer

JenJo Corp. & Hatto Inc.
Adtristaves1 Pier 6600, LLC
Bayshore MaD lAo LLC
lake Laurie RV Resort. LLC
Seashore Campsjles Inc.
Channels ApaJ1menIS
VICIOria HealIh Cotp.
VerizDn • New Jersey
BeadIccmber C8rnpgrouncIInc.
NoI1I1 Cape C<lnvaIescenI Center

Total

Source: ~ Tax Assessor

2011·2012
Taxable % 01 TctaI

Assessed District Nat
Value Assessed Value

$4,050,300
3.382,200
2,854,600
2,479,000
2,138,900
2,058,200
1,862,800
1,594,300
1,018,500

996,400

$ 22.435&00

0.90%
0.75%
0.63"1.
0.55%
0.47%
0.46%
0.41%
0.35%
0.23%
0.22%

4.97%

2011·2012
Taxable

Assessed
Value

% 01 TctaI
Dis1tict Net

Assessed Value

$28,412,795
25.304,795
20,878.501
12,500,000
11,989,500
11,780,300
11,473,100
10.089,700
9,837,735
8.812,600

$151,079.026

U)2%
0.90%
0.75%
0.45%
0.43%
0.42%
0.41%
0.36%
0.35%
0.32%

5.41%

2011·2012
Taxable

Assessed
Value (1)

% 01 Total
Dis1tict Nat

Assessed Value

$10.408.800
9,350,000
8,795,000
7,133,800
6.500.000
6,242,600
6,203,800
6.112.592
5,932,800
5,890,000

$72.569.392

0.25%
0.23%
0.22%
0.17%
0.16%
0.15%
0.15%
0.15%
0.15%
0.14%

1.77%

Taxpayer

Raysun PIOII8r1y Managemenl
CVS PIOII8r1y Managemenl
Individual t1
Depot Travel Parll
Capo May Lumbar Company
Individual 12
Capo Wesl AssocIates, Inc.
Wilbraham Partnership
Individual .3
SPE LallIlIsciano LLC

Granl Cape May LLC
Montreal Inc .. Hirsch Partnerst!ip
AOISlnc.
Statt Cotporalicn
caRJ Inc.
Kojzman Enlarprises
RobeI1 and RullI Escher
WIUsseII
Paul & Josetlb Bogle
Keyslone, Inc.

Taxpayer

DiamcncI Beach ResOlt. LLC
Cape May MaD
Bell AIIantic
Chas. & MargaIet Masda18IIa
Nct1h Capo Convalescen1 Center
VIdOria H8aIIb Corp.
Beer WOItd. inc.
SnowsIDoxsee, Inc.
HatIlOItown Resort Marina, Inc.
Shaw UmlIecI Partnership

100

ExblbllJ-8

2002·2003
Taxable % 01 Total

Assessed Dislrlct Nel
VIIIUB Assessed Value

$ 1,962,500
1.6n,800
1,113,300
1,089,100
1,020,000

876,900
866,600
852,900
705,600
695,800

0.74%
0.44%
0.38%
0.32%
0.30%
0.28%
0.27%
0.27%
0.22%
0.22'1'.

$ 10,860,500 3.44%

2002·2003
Taxable % 01 TctaI

Assessed DistriCt Nat
Value Assessed Value

$ 9,500,000
7,449,300
7,172,800
4,828,100
4,330,400
4,142,300
3.661,800
3,365,600
3,336,600
3,298,900

1.17%
0.92%
0.88%
0.59%
0.53%
0.51%
0.45%
0.41%
0.41%
0.41%

$51,086,000 6.29%

2002·2003
Taxable % 01 Total

Assessed Dislrict Nat
Value Assessed Value

S 7,250,000 0.51%
5,500,000 0.39%
5,349,591 038%
5,100,000 0.36%
4,927,000 0.35%
4,700,000 0.33%
3.797,100 0.27%
3.591,000 025%
3.435,300 0.24%
3.229.400 0.23%

~8791391 3.30%



Lower Cape May Regional School District
Property Tax Levies and Collections,
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Exhibit J·9

Collected within the Fiscal Year of the
Fiscal Year Taxes levied for le~· Collections in
Ended June the Calendar Percentage of Subsequent

3D, Year Amount levy Years

2003 $ 12,647,623 $ 12,647,623 100.00%
2004 13,499,495 13,499,495 100.00%
2005 13,564,913 13,564,913 100.00%
2006 14,851,814 14,851,814 100.00%
2007 16,498,988 16,498,988 100.00%
2008 16,898,058 16,898,058 100.00%
2009 17,328,976 17,328,976 100.00%
2010 18,163,417 18,163,417 100.00%
2011 18,860,045 18,860,045 100.00%
2012 19,199,200 19,194,200 99.97% s 5,000

Source: District records Including the Certificate and Report ot School Taxes (A4F tonn)

a School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute,
a municipality is required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in the
amount voted upon or certified prior to the end of the school year.
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Lower Cape May Regional School DIstrict
Ratios 01 Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Ye81'8
(doJ/srs In thDusands, except per capita)

ExhlbbJ-l0

BusI_Type
Governmental ActIvities ActIvItIes Pefcentage of Per&onaIlncome (e) Per Capha (b)

Fiscal
Year General Bond BoIOughol Borough of

Ended Obligation CertIficates 01 Capital Anticipation West Cape City of Cape Townsh!pof West Cape City of Cape Township of
Juno 301 Bonds Part'cll!!!!'on Leases Notes ,BANsi C!!I!hal Leases Total DIstrict Ma~ Ma~ Lower Ma~ Ma~ Lower

2003 $ 13,930,000 $ 2,200,000 $ $ $ $ 16,130,000 40.87% 11.35% 1.99% 14,853 4,125 722
2004 13,280,000 2,040,000 15,320,000 37.64% 10.39% 1.83% 14,494 4,002 703
2005 12,630,000 1,875,000 14,505,000 35.23% 9.70% 1.71% 14,096 3,881 664
2006 11,955,000 1,705,000 13,660,000 32.39% 6.54% 1.57% 13,579 3,580 659
2007 11,660,000 1,525,000 13,365,000 30.54% 8.06% 1.48% 13,548 3,5n 658
2008 11,060,000 1,335,000 12,395,000 26.92% 7.14% 1.30% 12,584 3,338 609
2009 10.245,000 1,135,000 11,380,000 25.11% 6.69% 1.22% 11,553 3,On 562
2010 9,425,000 935,000 10,360,000 21.32% 6.05% 0.95% 10,127 2,872 453
2011 8,440,000 720,000 9,160,000 (e) (e) (e) 9,007 2,554 403

.... 2012 7,390,000 490,000 7,880,000 (e) (e) (e) (e) (c) (e)

2
Note: Details regarding !he distild's OUIsIandIng debl can be found In !he notes to !he financial stalements.

(a) Based on Per CapI1a Income for Cape May County

(b) Based on School DIstrict Population as of July I,

(e) NO! available



Lower Cape May Regional School DIstrict
Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(dollars in thousands, except per capita)

exhibit J-ll

General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Percentage of Actual Taxable

Value of Property(a) Per Capita(b)
Fiscal
Year General Net General Borough of

Ended Obligation Bonded Debt Borough of City of Cape Township of West Cape City of Cape Township of
June 30, Bonds Deductions Outstanding West Cape May May Lower May May Lower

2003 $ 13,930,000 $ 13,930,000 8.15% 1.680/0 0.96% 12,827 3,563 624
2004 13,280,000 13,280,000 4.35% 0.64% 0.90% 12,564 3,469 610
2005 12,630,000 12,630,000 4.11% 0.60% 0.84% 12,274 3,380 595
2006 11,955,000 11,955,000 3.86% 0.55% 0.79% 11,884 3,133 5n
2007 11,860,000 11,860,000 2.34% 0.54% 0.25% 12,004 3,169 583
2008 11,060,000 11,060,000 2.16% 0.50% 0.24% 11,228 2,979 543
2009 10,245,000 10,245,000 1.99% 0.46% 0.22% 10,401 2,nO 506
2010 9,425,000 9,425,000 1.83% 0.34% 0.23% 9,213 2,613 452
2011 8,440,000 8,440,000 1.88% 0.30% 0.21% 8,299 2,353 408
2012 7,390,000 7,390,000 1.64% 0.26% 0.18% (c) (c) (c)

Note: Details regarding the districfs outstanding debt can be found In the notes to the financial statements.
(a) See Exhibit J-6 for property tax data.
(b) Population data can be found in Exhibit J-14.
(c) Not available.



Lower Cape May Regional School District
Ratios of Overlapping Govemmental Activities Debt
As of December 31, 2011

Exhibit J-12

Governmental Unit
Debt

Outstanding

Estimated
Percentage
Applicable •

Estimated
Share of

Overlapping
Debt

Debt repaid with property taxes:

Borough of West Cape May
Township of Lower
City of Cape May
Cape May County General Obligation Debt

$ 332,202 100.000% $ 332,202
17,590,494 100.000% 17,590,494
43,ln,554 100.000"/0 43,1n,554

133,812,537 15.067% 20,161,535

80,929,583

8,285,000

$ 89,214,583

Subtotal, overlapping debt

Lower Cape May Regional School District Direct Debt

Total direct and overlapping debt

Sources: Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentages provided by the Cape May County Board of Taxation.

Note: Debt outstanding data provided by each governmental unit.
Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the District.
This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and
businesses of Lower Cape May Regional. This process recognizes that, when considering the District's ability to issue and repay the
long-term debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However this does not imply that
every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt. of each overlapping payment.

8 For debt repaid with property taxes. the percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values.
Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of another governmental unit's taxable value that is within the
district's boundaries and dividing it by each unit's total taxable value.



lower Capo May Regional School District
Legal Debt Margin InformaUon,
Last Ten Flscul Yeans
(dollars In thousands)

Exhibit J-13

Average equalized valuation of taxable property

Legal Debt Margin CalculaUon for Fiscal Year 2012

EquaUzed valualkm basis
2012 S 7,450,940.nO
2011 7,497,750,467
2010 7.544,560,164

[A] S 22,493.251,401

[AI3] S 7,497,750,467

Debl timit (3.5% of average equalized valuation)
Net bonded school debt
legal debt margin

[B] 262.421,266 a
[C] 9,425,000

[8-C] o=l$~~2;252==,996~,266~

Fiscal Year

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012....
0 Debllimit s 105,363,362 $ 115,974,833 $ 147,928,064 $ 152,758,434 $ 171,127.031 $ 239,860.179 $ 259,521,046 $ 268.269,300 $ 266.091,905 $ 262,421,266(II

Tolal nel debl applicable 10 limit 13,930,000 13,280,000 12,630,000 11,955,000 11,860,000 11,080,000 10,245,000 9,425,000 8,440,000 7,390,000

legal debl margin $ 91,433,362 S 102,694,833 $ 135,298,064 $ 140,803,434 $ 159,267,031 S 228,800,179 $ 249,276,048 $ 258.844,300 $ 257,651,905 $ 255,031,266

Total nel debl applicable 10 the limit
as a peIQlRlage of debt timit 13.22% 11.45% 8.54% 7.83% 6.93% 4.61% 3.95% 3.54% 3.17% 2.82%

Source: EquaUzed vaIuaIion bases were obtained from the Annual Report of the State of New Jersey,
Department of Treasury, Division of Taxatioo

a limit sel by NJSA 18A:24-19 for a K Ihrcugh 12 dlsl1id: other %Iimils would be applicable for olJlerdlstricts



Lower Cape May Regional School District
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

exhibit J-14

Personal
Income Per Capita

(thousands of Personal Unemployment
Year Poeulation a dollars} b lncome" Rated

Borough of West Cape May

2003 1,086 $ 39,470,670 $ 36,345 5.2%
2004 1,057 40,705,070 38,510 7.4%
2005 1,029 41,176,464 40,016 7.4%
2006 1,006 42,179,568 41,928 7.8%
2007 988 43,827,680 44,360 7.4%
2008 985 46,045,795 46,747 9.1%
2009 985 45,314,925 46,005 13.0%
2010 1,023 48,590,454 47,498 13.5%
2011 1,017 e e 14.2%
2012 e e e e

City of Cape May

2003 3,910 $ 142,108,950 $ 36,345 8.4%
2004 3,828 147,416,280 38,510 5.7%
2005 3,737 149,539,792 40,016 7.0%
2006 3,816 159,997,248 41,928 7.3%
2007 3,742 165,995,120 44,360 7.0%
2008 3,713 173,571,611 46,747 8.6%
2009 3,699 170,172,495 46,005 12.2%
2010 3,607 171,325,286 47,498 12.8%
2011 3,587 e e 13.4%
2012 e e e e

Township of Lower

2003 22,337 $ 811,838,265 $ 36,345 10.5%
2004 21,777 838,632,270 38,510 7.2%
2005 21,216 848,979,456 40,016 7.9%
2006 20,731 869,209,368 41,928 8.4%
2007 20,329 901,794,440 44,360 8.0%
2008 20,369 952,189,643 46,747 9.9%
2009 20,239 931,095,195 46,005 13.9%
2010 22,862 1,085,899,276 47,498 14.5%
2011 22,707 e e 15.2%
2012 e e e e

Source:
a Population information provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development.
b Personal income has been estimated based upon the municipal population and per capita income.
c Per Capita for Cape May County.
d Unemployment data provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development.
e Not available.
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Lower Cape May Regional School District Exhibit J.16
Full·tlme Equivalent District Employees by Function/Program,
Last Eight Fiscal Years

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
FunctionlProgram

Instruction
Regular 152 152 152 153 152 152 147 136
Special education 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 32
Other special education 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 6
Vocational
Other Instruction
Nonpublic school programs
Adult/continuing education programs

Support Services:
Student & instruction related services 22 21 21 21 21 34 34 34
School administrative services 9 9 9 9 9 9 8 12
General and business administrative services 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6
Plant operations and maintenance 24 24 24 24 23 23 23 24
Pupil transportation 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22....

Special Schools0..... Food Service 20 20 20 20 19 19 19 19

Total 290 289 289 290 287 300 294 291

Source: District Personnel Records

This schedule does not contain ten years of information as GASB #44 was Implemented
during this fiscal year ending June 30, 2006.



Lower Cape May Regional School District
OperaUng StaUstlcs,
Last Ten Flsca' YeafS

Exhibit Jo17

PUl!llfTeacher RaUo
Average

Dally Average Dally % Change In Student
Fiscal OperaUng Cost Per Percentage Teaching Senior High Enrollment Attendance Average Dally Attendance

_!!.!!!_ Enrollment Expenditures • Pupil Change Staffb Middle School School (ADE) " (ADA)" Enrollment Percentape

2003 1,756 $21,990,569 $12.523 10.69% 139 1:11.3 1:13.6 1.758 1,622 -2.01% 92.26%
2004 1,793 23,404.070 13,053 4.23% 139 1:11.3 1:13.6 1.788 1,670 1.70% 93.40%
2005 1,773 24.567,733 13.857 6.15% 138 1:11.3 1:13.9 1,769 1,622 -1.06% 91.69%
2006 1,816 25,793,929 14.204 2.50% 138 1:11.5 1:14.5 1,801 1,648 1.81% 91.50%
2007 1,746 27,823,401 15,938 1.22% 138 1:11.3 1:13.9 1,746 1,817 -3.05% 92.61%
2008 1,729 28,764,694 16,637 4.40% 139 1:11.3 1:13.9 1,731 1,623 8.00% 93.76%
2009 1,623 28,713,567 17,692 6.34% 139 1:10.9 1:13.3 1,632 1,523 -5.72% 93.32%

.... 2010 1,635 29,861,522 18,142 2.54% 139 1.11.1 1.13.5 1.616 1,514 0.98% 93.69%
0 2011 1,616 28,730,164 17,779 2.54% 140 1:12.4 1:15.1 1,609 1,499 -0.43% 93.16%
C»

2012 1,538 28,822,631 18,740 5.41% 140 1:12.4 1:15.1 1,528 1,433 -5.03% 93.78%

Sourcee: District records

Note: Enrollment based on annuat October district count.

a Operating expendltures equal total expenditures less debt service and capital outlay.
b Teaching staR includes only full-time equivalents of certificaled staR.
c Average daily enrollment and average dally attendance are obtained from the School Reglsler Summary (SAS).

ThIs schedule does not comain ten years of information as GASa tI44 was implemented during this fiscal year endlng June 30, 2006.



Lowor Capo May Regional Sdlool District
School Building Infonnatlon
Last Eight F'Ka' Years

exhibit J·18

Dilltrlct BUilding
E!emenlarf
T1eUoman School (1973)

Square Feel
Capacity (sludents)
EnroUment

2005 2008 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

99,638 99,638 99,638 99,638 99,638 99,638 99,638 99,638
796 796 796 796 796 796 796 796
647 658 619 598 547 543 558 535

231,944 231,944 231,944 231,944 231,944 231,944 231,944 231,944
1,016 1,016 I,Ot6 1,016 1,016 1,016 1,016 1,016
1,169 1,115 1,126 1,131 1,106 1,073 1,051 993

5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500 5,500

HIgh Sdlool (1960)
SquateFeet
Capacily (students)
EnroDment

Other
Cenlnll Administration (1989)

Square Feet

Number of Schools at June 3D, 2012
Middle School = 1
Senlor High School = 1

Source: DIsIric;t Facilities OffICe
NOle: Year of OIilIinaI construdion is shown in parentheses, Ineroases in square footage and C8pac:i1y are the result of

additions. Enrollment is based on the annual Odober dislrid count.

This schedul8 does not contain ten years of infonnallon as GASB 1144was Implemented during this fISCal year ending June 30, 2006.



Lowor Capo May Regional School Dlstric:t ExhlbltJ·19
Schodulo of Required Malntenanc:o
Last Ton Flsc:a1 Years

UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES· REQUIRED
MAINTENANCE FOR SCHOOL FACILITIES
ll-OOO-261·xxx

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 TolBl
• Sc:Iwol Facilities

HighSchool S 180.129 S 211.199 S 293.488 S 312.163 S 406.722 S 437.080 S 511.519 S 566.495 S 475.485 S 544.357 S 3.936.637

TJeUeman Sc:hooI 95.674 126.300 141.059 S 99.892 130.151 139.865 163.686 176.304 199.841 233.850 1.506.622

Other radlities 57.926 65.982 10.530 4.162 5.423 5.828 6,820 5,840 13.782 12.895 189.188
TolBl School Fadlities $ 333,729 S 403,481 $ 445,077 $ 416,217 $ 542,298 S 582,773 $ 682,025 S 748,639 $ 689,108 s 791,102 S 5,634,447

........
Q

• School facilities as defined under EFCFA.
(N.JAC. 6A:26-1.2 ami N.J.A.C. 6A:26A-l.3)

Source: District records



Lower Cape May Regional School District
Insurance Schedule
June 3D, 2012

School Package Policy (1)
Building and Contents (All Locations)

Limits of liability per occurrence
Boiler and Machinery
Comprehensive General Liability
Comprehensive Automobile Liability
Worker's Compensation
Educators Legal Liability
Crime coverage:

Employee Dishonesty
Pollution and Mold

Student Accident Insurance (2)

Athletic Blanket Coverage (2)

Surety Bonds (3)
Treasurer
Board Secretary

(1) Atlantic and Cape May Counties Joint Insurance Fund
(2) Peoples Benefit Life Insurance Company
(3) RLilnsurance Company

Source: District records

111

Coverage

$ 150,000,000
125,000,000
10,000,000
10,000,000

Statutory
10,000,000

500,000
3,000,000

1,000,000

5,000,000

250,000
100,000

Self-Insured
Retention

$ 2,000,000

150,000
150,000
250,000
100,000

200,000

Exhibit J-20

Deductible

$ 500
1,000

500
25,000
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INVERSO & STEWART, LLC

Certified PubUc Accountants
Registered Municipal Accountants

12000 Lineoln Drive West, Suite 402
Marlton, New Jeney 08053
(856) 983-2244
Fax (856) 983-6674
['MaU: Isepg!@wneentri£,Qet

-Member of-
American Institute of CPAs
New Jeney Sodety ofCPAs

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM

AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH
OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 04-04

The Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Lower Cape May Regional School District
County of Cape May

Compliance

We have audited Lower Cape May Regional School District School District (School District), in the County of Cape
May, State of New Jersey's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement, and the New Jersey State Grant Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of the School District's major federal and state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. The
School District's major federal and state programs are identified in the Summary of Auditor's Results section of the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal and state programs is the responsibility of the School District's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the School District's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; OMB Circular A-133 Audits of State, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations: audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance, Department of Education, State of New
Jersey; and State of New Jersey Circular 04-04-0MB, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants
and State Aid. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 and State of New Jersey Circular 04-04-0MB, require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal or state program occurred.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the School District's compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the School District's compliance
with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Lower Cape May Regional School District School District, in the County of Cape May, State of New
Jersey complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on each of its major federal and state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. However, the
results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance with those requirements, which are required to be
reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and State of New Jersey Circular 04-04-0MB and which are described
in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item #2012-1.
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Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Lower Cape May Regional School District School District is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to federal and state programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the School District's
internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal or
state program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and State of New Jersey Circular
04-04-0MB, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School District's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal or state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be deficiencies,
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

The Lower Cape May Regional School District's response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. We did not audit School District's response and, accordingly,
we express no opinion on the response.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management of the School District, the Division of
Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey, and federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Respectfully submitted,

INVERSO & STEWART, LLC
Certified Public Accountants

{)tPA-
Robert P. Inverso
Public School Accountant

Marlton, New Jersey
October 23, 2012
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Lower Cape May Regional School District
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures

of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2012

I. GENERAL

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance present the activity of all
federal awards and state financial assistance programs of the Board of Education, Lower Cape May Regional School
District. The Board of Education is defined in Note 1to the School Districts basic financial statements. All federal awards
and state financial assistance received directly from federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards and state financial
assistance passed through other government agencies, are included on the schedules of expenditures of federal awards and
state financial assistance.

2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are presented using the
budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service fund, which are presented using
the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described in Note 1 to the School District's basic financial
statements. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133,
Audits of State, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations; therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule
may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

3. RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison
statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related
legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant agreement to be recognized in the audit year,
whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or when the expenditures have been
made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis with the exception of the
revenue recognition of the one or more deferred June state aid payments in the current budget year, which is mandated
pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes, payments are not recognized until the subsequent budget year due
to the state deferral and recording of the one or more of the June state aid payments in the subsequent year. The special
revenue fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis which recognizes
encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special
revenue fund also recognizes the one or two June state aid payments in the current budget year, consistent with N.J.S.A.
J8A:22-44.2.

The net adjustment to reconcile expenditures from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is ($54,789) for the general fund
and $ -0- for the special revenue fund. See Exhibit C-3, Notes to Required Supplementary Information for a reconciliation
of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and special revenue funds. Awards and
financial assistance expenditures are reported in the School District's basic fmancial statements on a GAAP basis as
presented as follows:

Federal State Total

General Fund s 405,887 s 11,317,482 $ 11,723,369
Special Revenue Fund 834,746 834,746
Debt Service Fund 155,808 155,808
Food Service Fund 391,651 7,840 399,491

Total Awards & Financial Assistance $ 1,632,284 $ 11,481,130 $ 13,113,414
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Lower Cape May Regional School District
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures

of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, lOll

(Continued)

4. RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal and state financial
reports.

s. OrnER

Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Distribution Program represent current year value received and current
year distributions respectively. The amount reported as TPAF Pension Contributions represents the amount paid by the
state on behalf of the School District for the year ended June 30, 2012. TP AF Social Security Contributions represents the
amount reimbursed by the State for the School District's share of social security contributions for TP AF members for the
year ended June 30, 2012.

6. MAJOR PROGRAMS

Major programs are identified in the Summary of Auditor's Results section of the Schedule of Findings and Questioned
Costs.
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LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Section I -Summary of Auditor's Results

financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: UNQUALIFIED

Internal control over financial reporting:

1) Material weaknesses identified? yes x no

2) Significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be a material weakness? yes _........;;x~_ none reported

Noncompliance material to basic financial
statements noted? yes x no

Fedeml Awards

Internal Control over major programs:

1) Material weakness(es) Identified? yes x no

2) Significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be a material weakness? yes _........;;x~_ none reported

Type of auditor's report on compliance for major programs: UNQUALIFIED

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133? x yes no

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

84.410A Education Jobs Fund

10.555 National School lunch Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish betwwen type A and type B programs: $300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? x yes no
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LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONT'D)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Section 1 - Summary of Audltor's Results (Cont'd)

State Awards Section

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $346,078

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? x yes no

Internal Control over major programs:

1) Material weakness(es) identified? yes x no

2) Significant deficiencies Identified that are
not considered to be material weakness? yes _ ___;;X.;___ none reported

Type of auditor's report on compliance for major programs: UNQUALIFIED

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with N.J. OMB Circular 04-047 yes x no

Identification of major programs:

GMIS Number(s) Name of State Program

12-495~~5120-014 Transportation Aid

12-495~~512O-089 Special Education Categorical Aid

12-49~~5120-084 Security Aid

12-495-034-5120-085 Adjustment Aid

12-495~~5095-O02 Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contributions

12-100-010-3350-023 School Lunch Program
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LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2012

Section 2 - Schedule or Financial Statement Findings

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance related to
the financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and with
audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

No findings identified.
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LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Section 3 - Schedule of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance
Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including
questioned costs, related to the audit of major Federal and State programs, as required by OMB Circular A-l33 and
New Jersey Circular Letter 04-04.

FEDERAL AWARDS:

Finding #2012-1

Information on the federal program:
Education Jobs Fund - CFDA No. 84.410; U. S. Department of Education; Passed-through State of New
Jersey, Department of Education

Criteria or specific requirement:
Under the Education Jobs Fund (Ed Jobs) requirements, an LEA may not use Ed Jobs funds to pay for
contractual school-level services by individuals who are not employees of an LEA.

Condition:
The District used Ed Jobs funds for a contractual agreement with the Township of Lower for the services of
a police officer.

Questioned Costs:
$63,990.

Context:
Expenditures must be made in accordance with grant requirements.

Effect:
The district appeared to violate the Ed Jobs requirements.

Cause:
Business office was not aware of the grant requirement.

Recommendation:
That only those costs that qualify under the federal guidelines be charged to the grant.

Management's response:
Management agrees with the above finding and will address the matter as part of their corrective action
plan.

STATE AWARDS

No findings and/or questioned costs identified.
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LOWER CAPE MAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR-YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS

AND QUESTIONED COSTS AS PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

This section identifies the status of prior year findings related to the basic financial statements and federal and state
awards that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.\2 of Government Auditing Standards. OMB
Circular A-133 and State of New Jersey OMB's Circular 04-04.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

There were no prior year audit findings

FEDERAL AWARDS

There were no prior year audit findings.

STATE AWARDS

There were no prior year audit fmdings.
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